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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Shareholders of
Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Seventh Annual Report (and the first after the IPO), 
together with the Audited Accounts of  the Company, for the period 1st April, 2007 to 31st March, 2008 
(the “Period”). 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Your Company is in the business of  infrastructure development. The business, by its very nature, 
requires your Company to undertake development of  various infrastructure projects through ‘Special 
Purpose Vehicles’ (SPVs). Consequently, the Company holds substantial equity stakes in several SPVs, 
in line with the concerned bid documents and tie-up agreements with consortium partners. Under the 
circumstances, to give an insight into the workings of  the Company, the Shareholders are advised to refer 
to the consolidated accounts of  the Company. Accordingly, your Company has prepared the ‘Financial 
Statements’ both on a ‘Consolidated Basis’ (taking into account the financial statements of  the Company, 
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and on a Stand-Alone Basis.

On a ‘Consolidated Basis’, the income of  the Company for the Period was Rs. 17,099 lakhs and the 
profit before depreciation/amortisation and taxation was Rs. 7,519 lakhs. After providing Rs. 4,160 lakhs 
towards depreciation/amortisation and Rs. 1,225 lakhs towards tax, the Company has a net profit of  Rs. 
1,864 lakhs for the Period. 

On a ‘Stand-Alone Basis’, the income of  the Company for the Period was Rs. 2,751 lakhs and the profit 
before depreciation/amortisation & taxation was over Rs. 1,374 lakhs. After providing Rs. 1,920 lakhs 
towards depreciation/amortisation and Rs. 479 lakhs towards tax, the Company has a net profit of   
Rs. 702 lakhs for the Period.

DIVIDEND 

The Company has several projects under implementation. With a view to enable the Company to invest in 
these projects, the Directors find it necessary to conserve the Company’s resources and have accordingly 
decided to plough back the Profit and have not recommended any Dividend for the Period. 

OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE 

The Company was incorporated in the year 2001 with the objective of  focusing on infrastructure 
projects on Public Private Partnership (PPP) basis. Your Company’s business currently comprises 
fourteen infrastructure projects, of  which four are already in operation and ten are at various stages of  
development. 

•	 Projects in Operation:

	 Rajahmundry-Dharmavaram Annuity Road Project – a 53 kilometer stretch of  road in Andhra 
Pradesh, being a part of  ‘National Highway – 5’, connecting Chennai and Kolkata. The project 
is owned by an SPV named Rajahmundry Expressway Ltd., a subsidiary of  your Company. The 
concession period for the Project is 17.5 years, including the 2.5 years for construction. The project 
commenced commercial operations in September, 2004. 

	 Dharmavaram-Tuni Annuity Road Project – a 47 kilometre stretch of  road in Andhra Pradesh, being 
a part of  ‘National Highway – 5’, contiguous to the Rajahmundry-Dharmavaram project referred 
to hereinabove. The project is owned by an SPV named Andhra Expressway Ltd., a subsidiary of  

Directors.indd   23 8/16/2008   3:12:13 PM



Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

24

your Company. The concession period for the Project is 17.5 years, including the 2.5 years for 
construction. The project commenced commercial operations in October, 2004. 

	 New Mattancherry Bridge Project – a 700 metre bridge across the Mattancherry Channel at Cochin, 
Kerala; owned by an SPV named Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Company Ltd., a subsidiary of  your 
Company. The project commenced commercial operations in September, 2001. 

	 Visakhapatnam Port Project – two multipurpose berths in the northern arm of  the inner harbor 
at Visakhapatnam Port, Andhra Pradesh, owned by an SPV named Vizag Seaport Pvt. Ltd. The 
concession period is 30 years, including a construction period of  2 years. The project commenced 
commercial operations in July, 2004. 

•	 Projects under Development:

	 These are projects at various stages of  development following the signing of  the concession/ license 
agreements with the respective client. These are:

	 Vadape-Gonde Toll Road Project – a 100 kilometre stretch of  road, being a part of  ‘National 
Highway – 3’ in Maharashtra, connecting Mumbai and Nasik. The project is owned by an SPV named 
Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd., a subsidiary of  your Company. The project has a concession period 
of  20 years, including a construction period of  3 years. The project has already achieved financial 
closure and is expected to be partially commissioned for tolling purposes by December, 2008 & fully 
commissioned by March 2009. 

	 Rangit II Hydroelectric Project – a 66 MW run-of-the-river hydroelectric project on the Rimbi river 
in West Sikkim. The project is owned by an SPV named Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Ltd., a 100% 
subsidiary of  your Company. The project has a concession period of  approx. 40 years. Presently, 
the project is awaiting final statutory development clearances from the Government. Construction 
activities are expected to commence by December, 2008.

	 Biomass Power Projects in Punjab – your Company has entered into an agreement with Bermaco 
Energy Systems Limited, to participate in the development of  nine biomass power projects in Punjab, 
with proposed installed capacities of  10 to 12 MW each. An SPV named Punjab Biomass Power 
Ltd. (“PBPL”) was incorporated to undertake the first two projects at villages Bhaghaura and Sawai 
Singh Wala in Patiala district. Your Company holds an equity stake of  50% in PBPL. The first project 
of  12 MW capacity is expected to be commissioned before March, 2009. 

	 Kosi Bridge Annuity Project – a four lane bridge, together with approach roads, over the river Kosi in 
Bihar on ‘National Highway – 57’. The project is owned by an SPV named Kosi Bridge Infrastructure 
Company Ltd., a 100% subsidiary of  your Company. The project has achieved financial closure. The 
concession period for the project is 20 years, including a construction period of  3 years.

	 Gorakhpur Bypass Annuity Project – a four lane road from km 0.00 to km 32.27 on ‘National 
Highway – 28’ in Uttar Pradesh. The project is owned by an SPV named Gorakhpur Infrastructure 
Company Ltd., a subsidiary of  your Company. The project has achieved financial closure. The 
concession period for the project is 20 years, including a construction period of  2.5 years.

	 Mumbai Offshore Container Terminal Project – a project for construction and management of  an 
offshore container berth and development of  a container terminal at Mumbai Harbour (“OCT”) with 
management of  the existing Ballard Pier Station Container Terminal (“BPS”). The project is owned 
by an SPV named Indira Container Terminal Pvt. Ltd. The license period for the OCT project is 30 
years including the construction period, while the license period for the BPS project is approximately 
for five years from the date of  signing of  the concession agreement. 

	 Adityapur Special Economic Zone Project – a mini special economic zone focused on automobile 
and auto components to be developed on 90 acres land at Adityapur in Jharkhand. The project is to 
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be developed and operated by an SPV named SEZ Adityapur Ltd. in which your Company will hold 
38% equity stake. The concession period for the project is 90 years, including a construction period 
of  5 years.

	 Tidong Hydroelectric Power Project – a 60 MW hydroelectric project in Kinnaur district of  Himachal 
Pradesh. The project is to be developed and operated by an SPV named Tidong Hydro Power Ltd, 
in which your Company will hold 50% controlling stake. The concession period for the project is 40 
years. A writ petition was filed against Government of  Himachal Pradesh to direct the government 
for execution of  the Memorandum of  Understanding; the matter is pending in High Court. 

	 Biomass Power Projects in Haryana – Gammon has in consortium with Bermaco Energy Systems 
Limited been awarded the development of  six biomass based power projects in Haryana, with 
proposed installed capacities of  10 to 12 MW each. The project is to be developed and operated 
by an SPV named Haryana Biomass Power Ltd., in which your Company will hold 50% controlling 
stake.

	 Pravara Co-generation Power Project – your Company has entered into an agreement with  
Padmashri Dr. Vitthalrao Vikhe Patil Sahakari Sakhar Karkhana Ltd. (“Karkhana”) for the development 
of  a 30 MW co-generation power project on BOOT basis in Maharashtra. The Company will operate 
the Project for 25 years from commencement of  operations and thereafter hand over the power 
plant to the Karkhana at a nominal consideration.

•	 Operation & Maintenance (O&M) Contracts

	 Your Company also has O&M Contracts for (i) the Rajahmundry-Dharmavaram Annuity Road Project; 
(ii) the Dharmavaram – Tuni Annuity Road Project; (iii) the Vadape-Gonde Toll Road Project; (iv) the 
Kosi Bridge Annuity Project; and (v) the Gorakhpur Bypass Annuity Project. While the contracts for 
the first two projects are operational, the contract for the subsequent three will become operational 
on the commencement of  operation of  these projects. 

FUTURE PROSPECTS 

Infrastructure is the backbone of  a progressive economy. As the country is gearing up to create the 
infrastructure across various sectors, PPP is increasingly becoming the mode of  development, due to 
its inherent advantages of  better risk allocation, earlier completion and efficiencies in operation. These 
factors coupled with the smoothening of  the regulatory process and incentives by the Government  
and the willingness of  the banks/financial institutions to provide infrastructure finance is resulting in 
tremendous growth opportunities in the sector. Almost all sectors of  infrastructure development, namely 
roads & expressways, ports, airports, power generation, urban infrastructure (including mass rapid 
transit systems, water & waste water management, etc), railways, power transmission etc., are witnessing 
increasing activities on the PPP side of  development. Your Company sees tremendous potential in the 
PPP sector. 

Your Company is currently involved at various stages of  financial proposal submission, technical proposal 
submission and pre-qualification submission in a number of  PPP projects and together, the size of  these 
opportunities across sectors, would be in excess of  Rs. 550 billion. 

The Company will soon take up the following two projects for development as soon as the ‘letter of  intent’ 
is received:

Youngthang-Khab Hydroelectric Power Project – a 261 MW hydroelectric project in Kinnaur district of  
Himachal Pradesh. The concession period for the project is 40 years.

Multi Purpose Port at Bedi – a greenfield multi purpose port to be developed at Bedi in Gujarat. The 
concession period for the project is 30 years.
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EQUITY CAPITAL

The Company made a public issue of  1,65,50,000 equity shares of  Rs. 10/- each of  the Company at the 
issue price of  Rs. 167/- per share through the book building route. The public issue, which was made at 
a difficult time for the share market, elicited oversubscription to the extent of  3.426 times. The shares 
were allotted on 27th March, 2008. The equity shares of  the Company were listed at the National Stock 
Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange on 3rd April, 2008. 

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

With a view to nurture in-house talent, espouse loyalty and provide an incentive for developing a 
long term relationship with the Company, your Directors (the Compensation Committee) had granted 
16,40,000 ESOPs (1.28% of  the pre-IPO capital) to the employees of  the Company, pursuant to  
the approval of  the members obtained at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of  the Company on  
4th May, 2007.

The details of  the ESOPs granted are set out in table below:

Options granted 16,40,000

Pricing Formula/Exercise Price Rs. 80/-

Options vested Nil

Options exercised Not Applicable

Total number of  Equity Shares arising as a result of  exercise of  
options

Not Applicable

Options lapsed 75,000

Variation of  terms of  options None

Money realised by exercise of  options Not Applicable

Total number of  options in force 15,65,000

Diluted EPS pursuant to issue of  Equity Shares on exercise of  option 
calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS – 20) 

Not Applicable

Weighted average exercise price Fixed price of  Rs. 80/–

Weighted average fair value Not Applicable

Description of  the method and significant assumptions used during 
the year to estimate the fair values of  options, including the following 
weighted average information:

(1)	 risk-free interest rate;

(2)	 expected life;

(3)	 expected volatility;

(4)	 expected dividends; and

(5)	 the price of  the underlying share in market at the time of  option 
grant.

Not Applicable

Employee-wise details of  options granted to: 

(1)	 Directors and senior managerial personnel; 

(2)	 Any employee who received a grant in any one year of  options 
amounting to 5% or more of  options granted; 

(3)	 identified employees who are granted options during any one 
year equal to or exceeding 1% of  the issued capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants and conversions) of  the Company at the time 
of  grant (excluding (ii) above)

As provided in the table 
below.
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TABLE

Name Position Stock 
options 
granted

Percentage of  
the grant on the 
issued capital at 
the time of  grant

Percentage of  
total options 
granted

Mr. Parvez Umrigar Managing Director 6,00,000 0.47 36.59

Mr. Parag Parikh Chief  Financial Officer 2,40,000 0.19 14.63

Mr. Kshitiz Bhasker Head- Business 
Development

1,50,000 0.12   9.15

Mr. Deepak Chauhan Deputy General Manager 
– Legal

1,20,000 0.09   7.32

Mr. Amanullah Aman General Manager 75,000 0.06   4.57

Each of  the options give the concerned employee a right to subscribe to one equity share each of  the 
Company at an issue price of  Rs. 80/- each over a period of  one to four years.

The Company has computed the employee compensation cost arising from grant of  Options using the 
intrinsic value method. The difference between the employee compensation cost so computed and the 
employee compensation cost as per the fair value method is Rs. 1,70,51,198/-. The net profit for the 
Period on stand alone basis will come down from Rs. 698 lakhs to Rs. 527 lakhs if  the fair value method 
is employed. Both the basic and diluted earning per share of  the Company will come down from 0.54 to 
0.41 for the Period. 

PARTICULARS UNDER THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988 

(A)	 Conservation of Energy 

	 The disclosure required under the said heading is not applicable to your Company. 

(B)	 Technology Absorption 

	 The disclosure required under the said heading is not applicable to your Company. 

(C)	 Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

	 The Company did not earn any foreign exchange during the Period. The Company expended 
foreign exchange equivalent to Rs. 5,008,771/- during the Period and a further sum of   
Rs. 10,816,209/- towards professional fees in relation to the IPO, which has been charged to the 
securities premium account.

SUBSIDIARIES 

Andhra Expressway Limited, Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited, Mumbai Nasik Expressway 
Limited, Rajahmundry Expressway Limited, Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Limited, Gammon Projects 
Developers Limited and Marine Project Services Limited continue to be the subsidiaries of  the Company. 
Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited, Gorakhpur Infrastructure Company Limited, Tidong Hydro 
Power Limited, Gammon Logistics Limited and Haryana Biomass Power Limited became subsidiaries of  
the Company during the year.

The Company has on 4th April, 2008 exercised a call option to purchase 2,28,77,500 equity shares of   
Rs. 10/- each of  Vizag Seaport Pvt. Ltd. from International Port Services Private Ltd., subject to regulatory 
approvals. Further, the Company has purchased 80,00,000 equity shares of  Vizag Seaport Pvt. Ltd. 
from Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Company Ltd., subsidiary of  the Company. Upon completion of  the 
two transactions the shareholding of  the Company in VSPL will stand increased to 73.76% from the  
present 42.22%. 
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Pursuant to the approval of  the Central Government, the Company has not attached the audited accounts 
of  the subsidiaries to the Audited Accounts of  the Company for the Period. However, the effect of  the 
same has been brought out in the consolidated Audited Accounts of  the Company. The annual accounts 
of  the subsidiaries and the related information will be made available to the Company’s and subsidiaries’ 
investors at any point of  time. These have also been kept for inspection of  the investors at the Registered 
Office of  the Company and of  the concerned subsidiaries.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Particulars of  employees required under Section 217(2A) of  the Companies Act, 1956 forms a part of  
this Report. However, as per Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of  the Act, the report and accounts are being sent 
to the shareholders of  the Company excluding the particulars of  employees under Section 217 (2A) of  
the Act. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of  the said statement may write to the Company 
Secretary at the Registered Office of  the Company. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirements of  Section 217 (2AA) of  the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors hereby 
confirm:

a.	 The applicable accounting Standards along with proper explanation relating to material departures 
have been followed by the Company in preparation of  the Annual Accounts for the Period; 

b.	 that the Directors have selected accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of  the 
state of  affairs of  the Company at the end of  the Period and of  the profits of  the Company for the 
Period;

c.	 that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of  adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of  the Act for safeguarding the assets of  the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

d.	 that the annual accounts are prepared on a going concern basis.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

As per Article 169 of  the Articles of  Association of  your Company, Mr. Sanjay Sachdev and Mr. Himanshu 
Parikh are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, have 
offered themselves for re-appointment. Your Directors recommend their re-appointment.

Mr. Naresh Chandra, ex-Governor of  Gujarat, ex-Indian ambassador to the United States and ex-senior 
advisor to the Prime Minister of  India joined the Board on 15th October, 2007 as an Additional Director 
of  the Company. The Company has received a notice from a member signifying his intention to propose  
Mr. Chandra’s candidature at the ensuing Annual General Meeting to the office of  a Director of  the 
Company liable to retire by rotation. 

Mr. Sushil Chandra Tripathi, ex-principal advisor to the Governor of  U.P., ex-secretary to the Government 
of  India in the Ministry of  Human Resources Development and Ministry of  Petroleum and Natural Gas 
joined the Board on 21st May, 2008 as an Additional Director of  the Company. The Company has received 
a notice from a member signifying his intention to propose Mr. Tripathi’s candidature at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting to the office of  a Director of  the Company liable to retire by rotation. 

During the year, the Company lost the services of  Mr. Guha Thakurtha as a member of  the Board due 
to his untimely demise. The Directors are grateful for Mr. Thakurtha’s services to the Company during  
his tenure. 
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up the following committees to assist the Board in its work:

(i)	 Audit Committee to, inter-alia, oversee and review the financial reporting system and disclosures 
made in its financial results;

(ii)	 Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee to, inter-alia, redress investor complaints;

(iii)	 Remuneration Committee to approve appointments and remuneration of  executive directors;

(iv)	 Compensation Committee to administer the ‘Employee Stock Option Scheme’;

(v)	 IPO Committee to oversee issues relating to and arising from the Public Issue; and

(vi)	 Project Committee to, inter-alia, advice the Company on the business opportunities that arise from 
time to time. 

	 The constitution of  the various committees, its powers and duties have been elaborated in greater 
detail in the ‘Corporate Governance Report’, which is annexed to the Audited Accounts of  the 
Company. 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Attention of  the Shareholders is invited to a separate section titled ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ 
which is annexed to the Annual Accounts. A certificate of  compliance issued by Mr. N. Veeraraghavn, 
a ‘practising company secretary’ on compliance with corporate governance requirements of  the Listing 
Agreement is annexed to this Report. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Attention of  the Shareholders is also invited to a separate section titled ‘Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report’ which is annexed to the Annual Accounts. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

Your Company has not accepted deposits under Section 58A of  the Companies Act, 1956.

AUDITORS 

The Company’s auditors, M/s. Natvarlal Vepari & Co. and M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates retire at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being willing and eligible to be re-appointed as Auditors  
of  the Company, have submitted their certificates to the effect that their re-appointments, if  made, would 
be within the limits prescribed under Section 224 (1B) of  the Companies Act, 1956. Your Directors 
recommend their re-appointment.

AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Observations made by the Auditors in their Audit Report have been duly clarified and explained in the 
relevant Notes forming part of  the Annual Accounts, which are self  explanatory and do not need any 
further clarifications.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of  the devoted and efficient services rendered by 
the personnel of  the Company. Your Directors also wish to acknowledge the co-operation and assistance 
received from the Bankers, Financial Institutions and various Government, Semi Government and  
Local Authorities. 
						      For and on behalf  of  the Board of,

 Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

				    Abhijit Rajan	 Parvez Umrigar
				    Chairman & Managing Director	 Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21.05.08
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Corporate Governance Report

GAMMON INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS LIMITED

[The Members may note that the Company became a listed company only on 3rd April, 2008 and was not 
required to comply with the listing agreement provisions in the financial year ended 31st March, 2008.]

Report on Corporate Governance

1.	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	 Introduction

	 The Board recognizes that transparency in disclosures, effective implementation of  internal controls 
and accountability at all levels, would lead to a good system of  corporate governance creating, 
sustainable long-term value for the shareholders and other stakeholders of  the Company.

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1	 Composition of the Board of Directors and attendance at the Board Meetings 

	 During the financial year ended 31st March, 2008 the Board had six Directors, of  which, three 
were independent. Later on 21st May, 2008 Mr. S.C. Tripathi, joined as the seventh member of  
the Board. He is an independent Director. Accordingly, the Company now has seven Directors of  
which four are independent. 

	 Mr. Abhijit Rajan is the Chairman & Managing Director of  the Company. Mr. Parvez Umrigar is the 
Managing Director of  the Company.

	 During the financial year ended 31st March, 2008 the Board met 4 times on 29th June,  
27th September, 15th October, 2007 and 7th January, 2008. 

	 The composition of  the Board of  Directors as at 31st March, 2008 and details of  Directors 
attendance at Board meetings and Annual General Meeting, the other directorships and Committee 
Chairmanships/Memberships held by the Directors are as follows:

Name of Director Out of 
four Board 
Meetings 

held during 
the year 

the Director 
attended

Attendance 
at Last 
AGM

No. of 
Directorships 

in other 
public 

companies$

No. of Committee 
Positions held in 
public companies 

including the 
Company**

Chairman Member

Mr. Abhijit Rajan
Chairman & Managing Director 4 yes 6 – –
Mr. Parvez Umrigar
Managing Director 4 yes 12 3 2
Mr. Himanshu Parikh
Non – Executive Director 4 yes 5 1 2
Mr. Guha Thakurta*
Independent Director 1 no – – –
Mr. C. C. Dayal
Independent Director 3 yes 10 3 5
Mr. Sanjay Sachdev
Independent Director 3 no nil – 1
Mr. Naresh Chandra#
Independent Director 1 no 9 2 8

	 *	 passed away on 29th September, 2007
	 #	 appointed as additional director on 15th October, 2007
	 $	 excludes private, foreign, unlimited liability companies and companies registered under section 25 of  the Companies 

Act, 1956
	 **	 indicates membership of  Audit & Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances Committees across all public limited companies.
		  Mr. S.C. Tripathi, who joined the Board on 21st May, 2008 is on the Board of  eight other public limited companies in 

two of  which he also holds committee memberships. 
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2.2	R emuneration of Directors

	E xecutive Directors

	 Mr. Abhijit Rajan, Chairman, was appointed as the Chairman & Managing Director of  the Company 
for a period of  three years with effect from 23rd January, 2006. He does not draw any remuneration 
from the Company.

	 Mr. Parvez Umrigar was appointed as the Managing Director of  the Company for a period of  three 
years with effect from 21st July, 2005 to 20th July, 2008. 

		  The particulars of  Mr. Umrigar’s remuneration for the period under review are as fallows:

			   (in Rupees)

Salary Rs. 48,62,535/-

Benefits Rs. 20,12,042/-

Bonus Rs. 20,68,625/-

Total Rs. 89,43,202/-

	 The Company has granted Mr. Umrigar 6,00,000 ESOPs of  the Company, which would vest on 
him a right to apply (exercisable over a period of  twenty four months after vesting) for 6,00,000 
equity shares of  the Company at a price of  Rs. 80/- per share in four installments over a period 
of  four years from 1st July, 2008. 

	 Notice period for termination of  appointment of  the Managing Directors is three months on  
either side.

	 Mr. Umrigar is also the Managing Director of  the Company’s subsidiary, Rajahmundry Expressway 
Ltd. from which he did not draw any remuneration during the period under report.

	N on-Executive Directors

	 The Non–Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings. The details of  
sitting fees paid during the period under report are as under:

Name Sitting Fees 
(Rs.)

Mr. Himanshu Parikh 50,000/-

Mr. Guha Thakurta* 5,000/-

Mr. Naresh Chandra 20,000/-

Mr. Sanjay Sachdev 45,000/-

Mr. C. C. Dayal 30,000/-

	 *passed away on 29th September, 2007

	 The Shareholdings of  the Non–Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2008 are as under:

Name No. of Equity 
Shares held

Mr. Himanshu Parikh 7,41,106

Mr. C.C. Dayal 980

	 There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of  the Non-Executive Directors  
vis-à-vis the Company.
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2.3	 Code of Conduct

	 The Company has put in place a Code of  Conduct for the Directors and the senior management. 
The Code of  Conduct is posted on the website of  the Company (www.gammoninfra.com).

2.4	 Insider Trading Code

	 As per SEBI (Prevention of  Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, the Company has adopted a Code 
of  Conduct for prevention of  Insider Trading. This code is applicable to all the Directors and 
designated employees. The code ensures prevention of  dealing in shares by persons having access 
to unpublished price sensitive information.

3.	A UDIT COMMITTEE

	 The members of  the Audit Committee were: 

	 Mr. C. C. Dayal (Chairman), 

	 Mr. Parvez Umrigar and 

	 Mr. Sanjay Sachdev 

	 Mr. Naresh Chandra joined the Audit Committee as a member on 21st May, 2008. During the 
period under review, the Audit Committee met three times on 29th June, 2007; 27th September, 
2007 and 7th January 2008. Attendance of  the Audit Committee members at such meetings is 
as follows:

Name No. of Meetings 
attended during 

the year

Mr. C. C. Dayal 3

Mr. Parvez Umrigar 3

Mr. S. K. Guha Thakurta* 1

Mr. Sanjay Sachdev** 1

	 *	 passed away on 29th September, 2007
	 **	 appointed on 15th October, 2007

	 The terms of  reference stipulated by the Board to the Audit Committee, as per Section 292A of  
the Companies Act, 1956 include:

	 1.	 Discussions with the Auditors periodically about internal control systems and the scope of  
audit including observations of  the Auditors; 

	 2.	 Review of  the half  yearly and annual financial statements and analyzing the performance of  
the Company, along with the management, before the same are forwarded to the Board with 
primary focus on accounting policies and practices, compliance with accounting standards 
and legal requirements having financial statement implications; 

	 3.	 Recommending the appointment and removal of  statutory and internal auditors, fixing the 
audit fees and approving payment of  other services;

	 4.	 Monitoring the adequacy of  the internal control environment including computerized information 
control system and security and management information systems;

	 5.	 To provide directions and oversee the operation of  the total audit function in the Company 
(internal as well as external).

4.	 SHAREHOLDERS’/INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

	 The members of  the Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee are: 

	 •	 Mr. Himanshu Parikh (Chairman); and

	 •	 Mr. C. C. Dayal
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	 The Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee has been set up for the following purposes:

	 •	 redressing complaints from shareholders such as non-receipt of  dividend, annual report, 
transfer of  shares and issue of  duplicate share certificates; 

	 •	 monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, rematerialization, splitting and 
consolidation of  shares issued by the Company; and 

	 •	 issues relating to the relationship of  the Company with its Share Transfer Agents, including 
appointment of, termination of  and agreement with Share Transfer Agents.

	 During the period under review, the Committee met only once on 8th November, 2007 at which 
both the member Directors were present. 

	 Mr. G. Sathis Chandran, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer of  the Company. 

5.	 IPO Committee

	 The IPO Committee was constituted by the Board on June 29, 2007 to oversee the ‘Initial Public 
Offer’ of  equity shares of  the Company. 

	 The members of  the IPO Committee are: 

	 Mr. Parvez Umrigar (Chairman); and

	 Mr. Himanshu Parikh

	 During the period under review, the Committee met 5 times on 30th January, 26th February, 
6th March, 16th March and 27th March 2008, during which both the member Directors were 
present.

6.	RE MUNERATION COMMITTEE

	 The Remuneration Committee presently comprises three Non-Executive Directors viz. Mr. C. C. 
Dayal (Chairman), Mr. Himanshu Parikh and Mr. Sanjay Sachdev. The scope of  the committee 
comprises appointment and terms of  remuneration of  the Executive Directors. 

	 During the period under review, the Committee met twice on 30th October, 2007 and on 
7th January, 2008 at which both the member Directors were present. 

7.	 COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

	 The Compensation Committee presently comprises two independent Directors and the Managing 
Director, viz. Mr. C.C. Dayal (Chairman), Mr. Sanjay Sachdev and Mr. Parvez Umrigar. The scope 
of  the Committee comprises administration of  the ‘GIPL Employee Stock Options Scheme’. 

	 The Committee has not met so far. However, it allotted ESOPs to eligible employees of  the Company 
by way of  a Circular Resolution dated 1st July, 2007. 

8.	 PROJECT COMMITTEE

	 The Board has on 21st May, 2008 constituted a Project Committee to evaluate and decide the 
business opportunities that the Company might want to take up, with emphasis on infrastructure 
related BOT/BOOT and allied projects from the point of:

	 (a)	 assessment and minimization of  legal and business risk; 

	 (b)	business/consortium partners; 

	 (c)	 terms of  engagement with consortium partners, technology providers and other service 
providers, including the costs thereof; 

	 (d)	 economic benefits and business positioning of  the Company.
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9. 	 GENERAL BODY MEETING 

9.1	 Location, Date and Time of the Annual General Meetings (“AGM”) held during the last 3 years

AGM  Year Date Time

4th 1st April, 2004 to 
31st December, 2004

28th June, 2005 11.30 a.m.

5th 1st January, 2005 to 
31st March, 2006

26th September, 2006 12.00 noon

6th 1st April, 2006 to 
31st March, 2007

27th August, 2007 11.00 a.m.

	 All the aforesaid AGMs were held at the Registered Office of  the Company at ‘Gammon House’, 
Veer Savarkar Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai-400 025.

9.2	 Special Resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings:

Date of the AGM Particulars of Special Resolutions passed

4th AGM No Special Resolution

5th AGM (a)	 resolution u/s. 372A for inter-corporate loans, investments etc.; and

(b)	 resolution u/s. 163 for keeping the Register of  Members etc. in the 
R&T agent’s premises

6th AGM (a)	 resolution u/s. 81(1A) relating to IPO

(b)	 resolution u/s 372A for inter-corporate loans, investments etc.

9.3	 Postal Ballot

	 The Company did not pass any resolution by postal ballot during the period under review.

10.	 DISCLOSURES

	 1.	 There are no materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. promoters, directors 
or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives conflicting with the Company’s interest. 
Suitable disclosures as required by the Accounting Standard (AS-18) have been made in the  
Annual Report. 

	 2.	 No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or 
any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years. 

	 3.	 The Company has fulfilled the following non mandatory requirement:

		  The Company has constituted a Remuneration Committee.

11.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

	 The quarterly, half  yearly and annual results will be published in newspapers. The said results will 
also be published on Company’s website. Press releases made by the Company are informed to 
the Stock Exchanges and are also uploaded on the website of  the Company. 

12.	 GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

12.1	A nnual General Meeting

		  Day and Date		  :	 September 15, 2008 

		  Time		  :	 11.00 a.m 

		  Venue		  :	� Patkar Convocation Hall, 
1, Nathibhai Thackersey Road, 
Queens Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 020 
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12.2	 Financial Calendar

		  First quarterly results			   :	 July, 2008

		  Second quarterly results			   :	 October, 2008

		  Third quarterly results			   :	 January, 2009

		  Fourth quarterly results			   :	 April, 2009

		  Financial Year 2008-09 (audited)	 : 	 June, 2009

12.3	 Date of Book Closure

	 On 15th September, 2008

12.4 	 Dividend Payment Date 

	 The Company has not declared any dividend for the year.

12.5	 Listing on the Stock Exchanges 

	 The Equity Shares of  the Company are listed at the following Stock Exchanges:

Name of Stock Exchange Stock Code/Symbol

(1)	 Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 532959

(2)	 The National Stock Exchange of  India Limited GAMMNINFRA

	 ISIN: INE181G01017 (Fully Paid)

12.6	 Listing fees for the year 2008-09

	 The listing fees have been paid up to date to the Stock Exchanges.

12.7	 Stock Market Data

	 The shares of  the Company were listed on Stock Exchanges w.e.f. 3rd April, 2008, hence this 
information is not available.

12.8	 Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL index etc.

	 The shares of  the Company were listed on the Stock Exchanges w.e.f. 3rd April, 2008, hence this 
information is not available.

12.9	R egistrar and Share Transfer Agents

	 Intime Spectrum Registry Limited, 
C–13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, 
LBS Marg, Bhandup (West), 
Mumbai - 400 078. 
Tel: 022-25963838, Fax: 022-25946969

12.10 	Share Transfer System

	 The Shareholders’ & Investors’ Grievance Committee looks after the share transfer system and 
other related issues in tandem with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. 
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12.11 	Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2008. 

No. of Equity Shares 
Shareholders

No. of Shares % of Total
Number % to Total

	 1	 –	 5,000 22,913 99.6781 44,90,279 3.1064

	 5,001	–	 10,000 30 0.1305 2,76,670 0.1914

	 10,001	–	 20,000 4 0.0174 53,480 0.0370

	 20,001	–	 30,000 17 0.0740 4,76,900 0.3299

	 30,001	–	 40,000 – – – –

	 40,001	–	 50,000 1 0.0044 46,344 0.0321

	 50,001	–	 1,00,000 1 0.0044 92,918 0.0643

1,00,001 and above 21 0.0914 13,91,13,409 96.2390

Total 22,987 100.00 14,45,50,000 100.00

12.12	 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2008.

Category Number of Shares Held % of capital

(A)	Promoter’s Holding   

	 1.	 Indian    

		  Individual/HUF (held as nominees) 30 0.0000

		  Central/State Government Nil  

		  Bodies Corporate 10,55,99,970 73.0543

		  Financial Institutions/Banks Nil Nil

		  Any Other  

		  Promoter Group 44,80,000 3.0993

	 2.	 Foreign Promoters  

		  Individual Nil Nil

		  Bodies Corporate Nil Nil

		  Institutions Nil Nil

		  Any Other Nil Nil

		  Sub-Total (A) (1+2) 11,00,80,000 76.1536

(B)	Public Shareholding  

	 1.	 Institutions  

		  Mutual Funds and UTI Nil Nil

		  Banks/Financial Institutions 20,33,563 1.4068

		  Insurance Companies (Central/ 
State Government Institutions/ 
Non-Government Institutions) Nil Nil

		  FIIs 68,57,093 4.7438

		  Foreign Venture Capital 46,344 0.0321

		  Foreign Company 1,15,20,000 7.9696

		  Sub-Total (B)(1) 2,04,57,000 14.1522
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Category Number of Shares Held % of capital

	 2.	N on-Institutions  

		  Bodies Corporate 23,85,326 1.6502

		  Individuals  

		  (i)	� Individual Shareholders holding 
nominal share capital up to  
Rs. 1 Lakh 47,11,142 3.2592

		  (ii)	� Individual Shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess of  
Rs. 1 Lakh 3,73,135 0.2581

		  Any other   –

		  (i)	 NRIs/OCBs 52,432 0.0363

		  (ii)	� Non-Independent Directors & 
Relatives 64,89,985 4.4898

		  (iii)	Independent Directors & Relatives 980 0.0007

Sub-Total (B) (2) 1,40,13,000 9.6942

Shares held by Custodians and against which 
Depository Receipts have been received – –

GRAND TOTAL 14,45,50,000 100.0000

12.13	 Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

	 The Company’s Shares are in compulsorily dematerialized segment and available for trading in 
depository system of  the National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited. As on the date of  allotment in IPO (27.03.08) about 88.578% of  the Company’s 
Shares are held in the demat form. The fully paid up Equity Shares are actively traded on NSE 
and BSE w.e.f. 3rd April, 2008.

12.14	�O utstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely 
impact on the equity 

	 None

12.15	 Plant Location 

	 None

12.16	A ddress for Correspondence 

	 All inquiries, clarifications and correspondence should be addressed to the Compliance Officer at 
the following address:

		�  Compliance Officer 
Gammon Infrastructure Projects Ltd. 
Gammon House, Veer Savarkar Marg, 
Prabhadevi, Mumbai – 400 025. 
Telephone : 022 - 67444000
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Management Certificate under Clause 49 (1D) of the Listing Agreement

To, 
The Members 
Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

This is to affirm that the Board of  Directors of  Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited has adopted a 
Code on Conduct for its Directors and Senior Management Personnel in compliance with the provisions 
of  Clause 49 (1D) of  the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and the Board of  Directors and 
Senior Management Personnel of  the Company have confirmed the compliance of  provisions of  the said 
Code for the financial year ended 31st March, 2008. 

Parvez Umrigar
						       Managing Director
Mumbai, May 21, 2008

 

Certificate from the Practising Company Secretary Regarding 
Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance

To, 
The Members of  Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited.

I have examined the compliance of  conditions of  Corporate Governance by Gammon Infrastructure 
Projects Limited for the year ended March 31, 2008 as stipulated in Clause 49 of  the Listing Agreement 
of  the said Company with the Stock Exchanges.

The Compliance of  conditions of  Corporate Governance is the responsibility of  the management. My 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the compliance of  the conditions of  Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of  
opinion on the financial statements of  the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of  my information and according to the explanations given to me and the 
representations made by the officers and the management, I certify that the Company has complied with 
the conditions of  Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Clause 49 of  the Listing Agreement.

I state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company 
as per the records maintained by the shareholders/investors grievance committee.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of  the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of  the Company.

(sd/-)

Veeraraghavn. N
Practising Company Secretary

C. P. No. 4334

Place	 :	Mumbai 

Date	 :	May 21, 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

About Us

Your Company (“Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited”) is an infrastructure project development 
company which participates in the development of  infrastructure projects in India and is among the first 
companies in India to be modelled as an infrastructure development company, undertaking projects on a 
public – private partnership basis (“PPP”).

The Company currently undertakes and develops projects such as roads, bridges, ports, hydroelectric 
power and biomass power projects on a PPP basis. In addition, projects in various sectors such 
as – urban infrastructure, airports, mass rapid transit systems, power transmission lines and SEZs – 
have been identified as areas of  focus for project development. We also offer services in other areas 
of  project development, such as project advisory services, project funding and operations and maintenance 
activities.

Presently, the infrastructure project development business includes fourteen projects – housed under 
separate special purpose vehicle companies. Of  these, four are already in the operations phase and the 
other ten at various stages of  development. 

Industry Structure & Developments

Over the past ten years, the Indian economy has grown at an average rate of  7.3% per year. Over the past 
ten years the per capita GDP and average consumer spending in India has increased at an average rate of  
4% and 5%, respectively. This growth in the Indian economy has fuelled demand for quality infrastructure 
services, which has led to increased infrastructure development in India. Due in part to recent regulatory 
and policy reforms, there has been growth in several areas of  infrastructure.

We believe a significant proportion of  this growth has been a consequence of  increased private sector 
involvement in infrastructure. While historically infrastructure services in India have been provided  
through government entities, in recent years, changes in the legal, regulatory and policy regimes in 
India have allowed for increased private involvement in infrastructure development. Some of  these recent 
legislative reforms include the Airports Authority of  India Act, 1994, as amended in 2003 and the 
Electricity Act, 2003, pursuant to which the Government has announced the National Electricity Policy 
articulating its resolve to make electricity available to all households and fully meet the demand for 
power by the year 2012. These measures have allowed public-private partnerships (PPPs) where projects 
are developed, financed, constructed and operated by private sector sponsors with cooperation from the 
Government. 

The increase in investments has led to notable progress in certain key sectors, particularly  
telecommunications and roads. For example, in roads, under the National Highway Development Program 
(NHDP) Phase I and Phase II, the largest highway project ever undertaken by the country, 14,471 
kilometres of  highways are being upgraded.

Despite recent progress, India has lagged behind many other developing and developed nations in  
terms of  infrastructure development. Infrastructure is an integral part of  economic development and  
the availability of  quality infrastructure services is key to sustained growth of  any economy. The current 
rate of  infrastructure investment in India at 3.5% of  GDP is well below the target rate of  8.0% proposed 
by the Expert Group on Commercialization of  Infrastructure Projects. (Source: Asian Development 
Outlook for 2005 – 2007 and Medium Term Trends). This indicates significant opportunities for further 
infrastructure development and financing in India, particularly as regulatory, legal and market frameworks 
evolve and become more supportive of  private investment.
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Our Projects

Operational Projects:

1.	 Rajahmundry Expressway Limited (REL) – REL is a subsidiary of  the Company, which has  
developed the project for widening and strengthening of  a 53 kilometer stretch between  
Rajahmundry and Dharmavaram in Andhra Pradesh on National Highway (“NH”) 5, connecting Chennai 
and Kolkata. 

	 The project has achieved commercial operations date (COD) on September 20, 2004, 70 days ahead 
of  schedule. The project has a concession period of  17.5 years, including operations period of  2.5 
years. The project has been capitalised at Rs. 25,600 lakhs.

	 As of  March 31, 2008, REL has received 6 annuities from NHAI (each semi-annual annuity amounting 
to Rs. 2961.9 lakhs). Till date, 100% lane availability has been achieved by REL and has not recorded 
any deduction in the receipt of  annuity payments from NHAI. 

	 Financial performance highlights of  REL during the last two fiscals is as under – 

Rs. in Lakh

Year ended

March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Income 6,596.8 6,395.8

Profit after tax 1,636.7 1,644.2

Equity Share Capital 2,900.0 2,900.0

Reserve and Surplus 5,587.9 3,951.2

2.	 Andhra Expressway Limited (REL) – AEL is a subsidiary of  the Company, which has developed the 
project for widening and strengthening of  the 47 kilometer stretch between Dharmavaram and Tuni 
in Andhra Pradesh on National Highway (“NH”) 5, connecting Chennai and Kolkata. 

	 The project has achieved commercial operations date (COD) on October 30, 2004, 30 days ahead of  
schedule. The project has a concession period of  17.5 years, including operations period of  2.5 years. 
The project has been capitalised at Rs. 24,800 lakhs .

	 As of  March 31, 2008, REL has received 6 annuities from NHAI (each semi-annual annuity amounting 
to Rs. 2,791.2 lakhs). Till date, 100% lane availability has been achieved by REL and has not recorded 
any deduction in the receipt of  annuity payments from NHAI.

	 Financial performance highlights of  AEL during the last two fiscals is as under –

Rs. in Lakh

Year ended

March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Income 6,186.7 5,951.5

Profit after tax 1,551.8 1,514.0

Equity Share Capital 2,900.0 2,900.0

Reserve and Surplus 5,569.8 4,018.0

3.	 Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited (CBICL) – CBICL is a subsidiary of  the Company  
which had developed the New Mattancherry Bridge Project, in Cochin, Kerala on BOT (toll) basis. 
The 700 m long bridge connects Fort Kochi (a heritage town and a famous tourist site) to Willingdon 
Island in the Cochin Port Trust area and is operational since last 6.5 years.
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	 The construction was completed 10 months ahead of  schedule, which resulted in the early collection 
of  toll revenues. At present the bridge witnesses daily traffic of  approximately 18,000 passenger car 
units (“PCU”). The project had been capitalized at Rs. 2,574 lakhs.

	 Pursuant to the restructuring of  the project concession by Government of  Kerala (GOK) and the 
ensuing Government Order, the project has a concession period of  19 years & 9 months. CBICL is 
also entitled to receive a fixed annual annuity payment of  Rs. 154 lakhs from GOK. 

	 Financial performance highlights of  CBICL during the last two fiscals is as under –

Rs. in lakhs

Year ended

March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Income 535.2 544

Profit after tax 79.7 147.3

Equity Share Capital 640 640

Reserve and Surplus 299.1 219.4

4.	 Vizag Seaport Private Limited (VSPL) – VSPL is the SPV formed to develop, construct, operate  
and manage two multipurpose berths in the northern arm of  the inner harbour at Visakhapatnam  
Port on a BOT basis. VSPL is the only private operator for handling bulk cargo in India’s largest 
seaport at Visakhapatnam. VSPL has developed the berths and terminal as a fully mechanized 
integrated handling system incorporating state-of-the-art technologies, capable of  handling cargo up 
to nine MTPA.

	 The commercial operations begun in July, 2004 and the Company has handled 4.4 million tons of  
cargo in the financial year ending March 2008. The concession period is 30 years, including the 
construction period. As of  March 31, 2008, the project has been capitalized at Rs. 31,432.9 lakhs.

	 As of  March 31, 2008, your Company held 42.22% of  the equity shareholding in VSPL. 28.89% of  
the equity is held by International Port Services, the investment arm of  Portia Management Services 
Limited, UK, an international port operator and the remaining 28.89% is held by Lastin Holdings 
Limited.

	 The Company has on 4th April, 2008 exercised the call option to purchase 2,28,77,500 equity shares 
of  Rs.10/- each of  Vizag Seaport Pvt. Ltd. from International Port Services Private Ltd. The transaction 
will be subject to regulatory approvals. Further, VSPL has allotted 80,00,000 equity shares to Cochin 
Bridge Infrastructure Company Ltd., subsidiary of  the Company, on 1st April, 2008 upon conversion 
of  loan into equity at par, which will be transferred to the Company. Upon completion of  the two 
transactions the shareholding of  the Company in VSPL will stand increased to 73.76% from the 
present 42.22%. 

	 Financial performance highlights of  VSPL during the last two fiscals is as under –

Period ended

March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Income 5,629.6 3,370.4

Profit after tax (1,699.2) (1,506.0)

Equity Share Capital 7,919.1 7,919.1

Reserve and Surplus (5,040.1) (3,333.9)
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Projects under Development:

1.	 Mumbai Nasik Expressway Limited (MNEL) – MNEL is the SPV created for widening, strengthening 
and operating the 99.5 kilometer Vadape–Gonde (Mumbai–Nasik) section of  NH–3 on BOT basis. The 
project is part of  the NHDP Phase III.

	 The concession period for the project is twenty (20) years, including a construction period of  three 
years. The total project cost is estimated to be Rs. 75,300 lakhs. 

	 Financial closure for the project has been achieved and presently the project is under its implementation 
phase with a total capitalization of  Rs. 38,527 lakhs as of  March 31, 2008.

	 Your Company holds 77.4% equity stake in MNEL.

	 Engineering, Procurement & Construction (EPC) Contract for the project has been awarded to  
Gammon India Limited (GIL). The responsibilities of  tolling (“Tolling Services”) and maintenance 
(“Maintenance Services”) of  the project have been granted to your Company. The Tolling Services  
and the Maintenance Services shall commence from the COD until the expiry of  the entire  
concession period.

2.	 Sikkim Hydropower Ventures Limited (SHPVL) – SHPVL is a wholly owned subsidiary of  the Company 
which is developing the 66 MW Rangit II Hydroelectric Power Project in Sikkim on BOOT basis. 
The project involves the development of  a 66 MW run-of-the-river Hydroelectric Power Project on the 
Rimbi river. Concession period for the project is thirty-five (35) years from the Commercial Operations 
Date (COD).

	 As per the conditions of  the agreement executed between SHPVL and Government of  Sikkim (GOS), 
SHPVL needs to provide free power to the GOS equivalent to 12% of  the net energy generated for 
the first fifteen (15) years from COD and at 15% of  the net energy generated thereafter. Apart from 
providing such free power, the agreement provides complete freedom to SHPVL for the sale of  power 
within and outside the State of  Sikkim with the permission of  the Government of  Sikkim and also 
permits captive consumption.

	 A detailed project report has been approved by Sikkim Power Development Corporation (“SPDC”) and 
environmental studies are being carried out. The construction activities for the project are expected 
to commence by December 2008.

3.	 Punjab Biomass Power Limited (PBPL) – PBPL is the SPV formed to develop upto nine biomass  
based power projects, each having power generation potential in the range of  10 MW to 15 MW, in 
the State of  Punjab, on BOO basis. These projects will primarily use rice straw as the feedstock to 
generate power.

	 The Power Purchase Agreements have been signed for two of  the projects for twenty (20) years 
from their respective scheduled CODs. The Power Purchase Agreements can be further extended 
for ten (10) years at mutually agreeable terms. A tariff  order has been issued by Punjab State 
Electricity Regulatory Commission on October 4, 2005 notifying the tariff  and other commercial 
terms for the nine projects. The total project cost for the first project (12 MW) is estimated to be  
Rs. 4900 lakhs.

	 Presently, the first project of  12 MW is under implementation in Bhagaura village, Patiala district 
and the expected COD for this project is February, 2009. The land acquisition for the second project 
in Sawai SinghWala village has been completed and the construction activities have commenced. 
Financial closure for the first project is presently underway.

	 As of  March 31, 2008, the project capitalization is Rs. 422.4 lakhs

Corporate.indd   42 8/16/2008   4:39:00 PM



7th Annual Report 2008

43

4.	 Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited (KBICL) – KBICL is a subsidiary of  the Company 
incorporated for design, construction, development, finance, operation and maintenance of  a  
1.8 kilometer long four-lane bridge across river Kosi with 8.2 kilometer of  access roads and bunds for 
flood protection on NH 57 in the Supaul district of  Bihar, on BOT(Annuity) basis. 

	 The concession period is twenty (20) years, ending in April 2027, of  which seventeen (17) years is for 
operations and three years is for construction. KBICL will receive an annuity payment of  3190 lakhs 
from NHAI, semi-annually, in the entire operations period. The COD is expected to be April, 2010.

	 The total project cost is estimated to be Rs. 44,000 lakhs.

	 Financial closure for the project has been achieved. Presently the project is under implementation 
with a total capitalization of  Rs. 8,460.2 lakhs as of  March 31, 2008.

	 Engineering, Procurement & Construction (EPC) Contract for the project has been awarded to Gammon 
India Limited (GIL). The responsibilities of  maintenance (“Maintenance Services”) of  the project have 
been granted to your Company. The Maintenance Services shall commence from the COD until the 
expiry of  the entire concession period.

5.	 Gorakhpur Infrastructure Company Limited (GICL) – GICL is a subsidiary of  the Company incorporated 
for design, construction, finance and maintenance of  a 32 kilometer long four-lane bypass to Gorakhpur 
town on NH 28 in the State of  Uttar Pradesh on BOT(Annuity) basis. 

	 The concession period is twenty (20) years, ending in April, 2027, of  which 17.5 years is for operations 
and 2.5 years is for construction. GICL will receive an annuity payment of  Rs. 4,860 lakhs from NHAI, 
semi-annually, in the entire operations period. The COD is expected to be in October, 2009.

	 The total project cost is estimated to be Rs. 64,000 lakhs.

	 Financial closure for the project has been achieved. Presently the project is under implementation 
with a total capitalization of  Rs. 15,942.7 lakhs as of  March 31, 2008.

	 Engineering, Procurement & Construction (EPC) Contract for the project has been awarded to Gammon 
India Limited (GIL). The responsibilities of  maintenance (“Maintenance Services”) of  the project have 
been granted to your Company. The Maintenance Services shall commence from the COD until the 
expiry of  the entire concession period.

6.	 Indira Container Terminal Private Limited (ICTPL) – ICTPL has been incorporated for construction 
of  two offshore container berths and development of  a container terminal in Mumbai Harbour and 
management of  the existing Ballard Pier Station Container Terminal. ICTPL also has the right to 
develop the third berth in addition to the two berths on achieving certain throughput conditions as 
per the License Agreement. 

	 As per the License Agreement executed between ICTPL and Mumbai Port Trust (MbPT), the license 
period for the project is thirty (30) years, including three years of  construction and equipping. The 
expected COD for the project is December, 2010. The revenue share payable by ICTPL to MbPT is 
35.064% of  gross revenue for the year. When fully developed the first phase of  the project would have 
a design capacity to handle 1.4 million TEUs.

	 Financial closure for the project is presently underway. 

7.	 Pravara Co-generation Power Project – This project involves the design, construction, finance and 
operation of  a 30 MW co-generation power project on BOOT basis with Padmashri Dr. Vitthalrao Vikhe 
Patil Sahakari Sakhar Karkhana Limited (“Karkhana”) in Pravara Nagar, Maharashtra. The Karkhana is 
a co-operative sugar factory registered under the provisions of  the Maharashtra Co-operative Societies 
Act, 1960. SPV for this project has not been set up till date.

	 As per the Project Development Agreement executed with Karkhana, the SPV shall be responsible 
for designing, development, procurement, installation, erection, commissioning, operation and 
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maintenance of  the co-generation facility for a period of  twenty-five (25) years after commercial 
operation date.

	 The co-generation facility will be designed as a multi-fuel power plant fired by bagasse or other 
biomass fuel. The co-generation facility will use bagasse generated or procured by the Karkhana and 
additional bagasse procured by us as the main fuel to the extent available and bio-gas made available 
by Karkhana. The co-generation facility shall supply the process steam and power to the Karkhana 
and shall sell surplus power to any third party after meeting requirements of  the Karkhana.

	 A detailed project report of  the project has been carried out and the indicative cost for executing the 
project has been estimated at Rs. 16,500 lakhs.

8.	 SEZ Adityapur Limited (SEZAL) – SEZAL is implementing the project of  development of  an SEZ for 
automobile and auto components at Adityapur, in the state of  Jharkhand in eastern India. The state 
government is expected to lease out the land to the SPV measuring approximately ninety (90) acres 
for a period of  ninety (90) years. Adityapur Industrial Area Development Authority (“AIADA”) is the 
nodal agency for the project.

	 Your company holds 38% equity stake in SEZAL.

	 AIADA has issued a letter of  allotment to the consortium for the development of  the SEZ. 

	 The authorisation agreement is yet to be executed with AIADA.

9.	 Haryana Biomass Power Limited (HBPL) – Haryana Renewable Energy Development Agency (HAREDA) 
has issued a letter of  intent for establishing eight biomass based power projects (out of  which we 
intend to develop six) in Haryana in a consortium with a private developer. The capacity of  the 
projects is likely to be in the range of  10 to 12 MW each. These projects will primarily use rice straw 
as the feedstock for generation of  power.

	 The detailed project report has been prepared and submitted to HAREDA for their approval. 

10.	Tidong Hydropower – The Government of  Himachal (GOH) has allotted the 60 MW Tidong – II Hydro 
Electric Project to a consortium consisting of  Gammon and a private party. 

	 The Memorandum of  Understanding is still to be executed between GOH and the consortium. A writ 
petition was filed against GOH to direct the government for execution of  the MOU; The matter is 
pending in High Court.

Business Development Review (as of May 21, 2008) 

1.	 Of  the various projects the Company/the holding company has bid for during the year, we are the 
preferred bidders for the following two projects – 

	 •	 Development of  a 260 MW hydro power project in Youngthang-Khab, Himachal Pradesh.

	 •	 Development of  a multi purpose port at Bedi, Gujarat.

	 The Letters of  Intent (LOI) for these projects are still awaited from the respective government 
authorities.

2.	 Further, we are awaiting the results of  the following financial bids which are expected to be announced 
shortly – 

	 •	 Development of  Vizhinjam International Transhipment Port on BOT basis in Kerala.

	 •	 Development of  Modhwa minor Port in Gujarat.
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3.	 As of  date, your company has further been short listed/has submitted qualification papers for the 
following projects/sectors – 

Project/Sector No. of projects Estimated Project 
Cost* (Rs. Crores)

Projects where qualified to place Financial Bid 14 19,964

Roads 5 1,704

Ports 4 1,568

MRTS/ LRTS 2 15,800

Urban Infra 3 892

Projects where RFQ/ EOI is placed, results awaited 24 37,940

	 *	 The Estimated Project Cost is based on the respective client estimates as featuring in the RFQ/ 
RFP documents.

4.	 Opportunities in the pipeline – Your Company is well positioned to qualify and bid for infrastructure 
projects across varied sectors such as ports, roads, energy, metro rails, urban infrastructure etc. In 
the ports sector your company is qualified to Bid for various port privatization projects at Paradip 
Port (iron ore and coal berth projects), Karwar Port (port privatization), New Mangalore Port (iron ore 
mechanized facilities); in metro rail projects your Company is pre-qualified to Bid for the Hyderabad 
metro rail project and the Mumbai metro rail (Charkop-Bandra-Mankhurd line); in the roads sector 
your company has submitted pre-qualification applications for eighteen (18) projects totaling to more 
than Rs. 21,000 crores. 

5.	 The Committee on Infrastructure chaired by the Prime Minister, has recently introduced new guidelines 
for qualification of  private participants in the PPP projects. These guidelines are applicable and are 
being adapted by all the nodal agencies across the country in the state/center sector. 

	 The guidelines suggest pre-qualification of  about five/six pre-qualified bidders who would then be 
allowed to submit the financial bids. In case short-listing is to be done for two or three projects at the 
same time, the number of  short-listed bidders could be increased to 7 and 10 respectively. Bidding 
authorities in the roads, ports, airports, MRTS sector have already implemented these guidelines for 
new projects. Your company has entered into strategic partnerships with reputed global infrastructure 
developers/investors for the purpose of  qualifying and bidding for the upcoming projects. 

Financial Performance Review – Consolidated Financials

Income: We derive our income primarily from our four currently operational projects as well as from 
advisory services and operations and maintenance income. Income from our operational projects currently 
includes annuity income from REL’s and AEL’s road projects and CBCIL’s bridge project, toll income 
from CBCIL’s bridge project as well and income from VSPL’s port operations. The income from advisory 
services is for the advice provided by us during pre-bidding, bidding and financial closure primarily to our 
group companies. Income from operations and maintenance is on account of  fees received for operating 
and maintaining the road projects.

Our total income was Rs. 17,099.6 lakhs for the financial year ended March 31, 2008 as compared to  
Rs. 15,890.2 lakhs for financial year ended March 31, 2007. For the financial year ended March 31, 
2008, total income comprised of  turnover of  Rs. 15,938 lakhs and other income of  Rs. 1,161.6 lakhs.

Annuity income, income from port operations and toll income comprised 68.19%, 13.90%and 2.08% 
respectively, of  our total income for the financial year ended March 31, 2008. In addition, O&M income 
comprised 8.36% of  our total income for the financial year ended March 31, 2008. Income from advisory 
services rendered to group companies during the Fiscal 2008 amounting to Rs. 1,149.6 lakhs has been 
eliminated since it is an inter group company transaction.
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Expenditure: Our expenditure consists of  operating expenses, establishment expenses, finance costs, 
depreciation, amortisation and preliminary and share issue expenses written off.

Our total expenditure was Rs. 13,761.4 lakhs for the Fiscal 2008 as compared to Rs. 11495.6 lakhs for 
the Fiscal 2007.

Operating Expenses: Our operating expenses were Rs. 4,451.8 lakhs, for the Fiscal 2008 and Rs. 2,943.8 
lakhs for the Fiscal 2007.

The increase in operational expenses, for the Fiscal 2008 as compared to the Fiscal 2007, was substantially 
attributable to the following factors:

(a)	 Increase in the Operation and Maintenance Expense of  Road & Port Projects – The Port Operation expense has 
increased from Rs. 603.7 lakhs in Fiscal 2007 to Rs 1,536.7 lakhs in Fiscal 2008 primarily due to the one  
time cost incurred towards demurrage costs of  Rs 594 lakhs during the last fiscal by Vizag Seaport 
Private Limited.

(b)	Rise in the Staff  Expenses from Rs. 284.7 lakhs in the Fiscal 2007 to Rs. 612.4 lakhs in Fiscal 
2008. 

	 The Salaries, wages and bonus paid to the employees of  Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited has 
risen from Rs. 220.2 lakhs in Fiscal 2007 to Rs. 393.5 lakhs in Fiscal 2008.

	 During the Fiscal 2008, the Company had issued Employee Stock Options (ESOP’s). The ESOP 
compensation cost for the Fiscal 2008 was Rs. 113.5 lakhs.

Finance Costs: Finance cost consists of  interest paid on term loans and working capital loans, and also 
includes finance charges related to such borrowings.

Our finance costs were Rs. 5,128 lakhs, for the Fiscal 2008 as compared to Rs. 4,497.4 lakhs, for the 
Fiscal 2007. Finance costs increased for the Fiscal 2008 as compared to Fiscal 2007, primarily due to 
an increase in interest paid on term loans for REL and AEL in the Fiscal 2008. 

Depreciation and Amortisation: Our depreciation and amortisation costs were Rs. 4,161 lakhs, for the 
Fiscal 2008 and Rs. 4,022.9 lakhs, for the Fiscal 2007. 

Taxation: Our provision for taxation was Rs. 1,225.3 lakhs, for the Fiscal 2008 and Rs. 1,116 lakhs, for 
the Fiscal 2007. 

Net Profit after Tax: Our net profit after tax was Rs. 2,110.1 lakhs for the Fiscal 2008 and Rs. 3,212.8 
lakhs, for the Fiscal 2007.

As the Company operates in a single segment, namely project development and does not have ‘products’ 
in the normal sense of  the word, no separate segmental or product wise analysis has been made. 

Risks & Concerns

As an infrastructure project development company, our financial condition and results of  operations are 
affected by numerous factors and the following are of  particular importance:

•	 General economic and business conditions: As a company operating in India, we are affected by the 
general economic conditions in the country and in particular the factors affecting the infrastructure 
industry in general and the projects we develop in particular. Quality infrastructure, covering the 
services of  transportation, energy, urban infrastructure and industrial and commercial infrastructure 
is one of  the important necessities for promoting and sustaining the economic growth of  the country. 
Growth in the industrial and manufacturing activity and services sector leads to growth in demand 
for infrastructure facilities which translates into new proposals for construction, up-gradation and 
maintenance of  infrastructure facilities. The growth prospects of  our business and our ability to 
implement our strategies will be influenced by macroeconomic growth.
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•	 Dependence on government policy and regulation towards infrastructure: The growth of  the infrastructure 
industry in India and our business is dependent on the establishment of  stable government policies 
and prudent regulation. Changes in government policies, which began in the 1990s, facilitated the entry 
of  private capital into infrastructure and have led to rapid growth in certain sectors. More recently, 
policy changes in the transportation, energy, urban infrastructure and industrial and commercial 
infrastructure sectors have begun to attract significant private sector interest. We believe that with 
the policy and regulatory reforms continuing to move in the right direction, our growth and financial 
conditions and operations will be positively impacted.

•	 Competition: Despite the fact that we are not affected by competition in the short-term due to our 
arrangements under our concession and license agreements, our results of  operations could be 
affected by competition in the infrastructure sector in India in the future. We expect competition to 
intensify due to possible new entrants in the market, existing competitors further expanding their 
operations and our entry into new markets where we may compete with well-established infrastructure 
companies. This we believe may impact our financial condition and operations.

•	 Our bidding and execution capability: Infrastructure project development on a public private partnership 
basis in India involves pre-qualifying interested companies based on their technical and financial 
strengths. The nature of  the Government’s process is such that the pre-qualifications obtained in the 
past play an important role in allowing companies to bid for the new projects. Further, the ability to 
strategically partner with other players will also determine the success in award of  projects for which 
we bid. 

•	 Availability of cost effective funding sources: Our ability to grow in the infrastructure sectors depends 
largely on cost effective avenues of  funding and will be primarily met through funding by increased 
borrowing from external sources and the issuance of  new debt. Our debt service costs as well as our 
overall cost of  funds depend on many external factors, including developments in the Indian credit 
market and, in particular, interest rate movements and the existence of  adequate liquidity in the debt 
markets. We believe that going forward the availability of  cost effective funding sources could affect 
our business operations and financial performance.

•	 Tax benefits and incentives: Our project SPVs are eligible for certain tax benefits and incentives that 
accord favourable treatment to infrastructure-related activities. In addition, we expect to benefit from 
tax benefits offered to SEZs. Moving forward, we believe that any change in the existing tax benefits 
and incentives can affect our financial condition.

Opportunities & Threats

While roads & expressways has been one of  the first and currently the largest sector in terms of  creation 
of  opportunities coming up in infrastructure development on PPP basis, other sectors like ports, hydro 
power, airports, urban infrastructure etc., are also throwing up huge opportunities, as most of  these need 
a tremendous ramp up before our country can come anywhere close to being a developed nation. 

In the roads sector, National Highways Authority of  India has huge plans, as a part of  its National 
Highway Development Programme (NHDP) and Non NHDP, for enhancing the road network of  the country. 
Your company already has significant presence in infrastructure development projects under NHAI (both 
annuity and toll based) and continues to look forward to such opportunities.

In the ports sector, development of  major and minor ports, both by the Ministry of  Shipping and the 
State Governments, is a major business avenue for future.

As our cities become larger, the need to upgrade their infrastructure becomes more and more acute. 
Many of  these fast growing cities are moving to develop mass rapid transit systems and modern water 
& waste water management systems towards meeting their infrastructure requirements through the PPP 
route, which translates into ample business opportunities in the urban infrastructure sector.
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In the power sector, the Government’s thrust on hydro power as an important alternate avenue for future 
power is well known. Of  late, as the country’s demand for power has increased exponentially, the need 
for faster development of  such sources of  power has been recognized by both, the Central & State 
Governments. Accordingly, a host of  exciting opportunities have come up or are on the anvil for PPP 
development of  such sources of  power. 

The set of  opportunities stated hereinabove brings with them the associated business risks. While your 
Company is well prepared for such business risks, it considers the following as potential threats for 
entities operating in the PPP business:

•	 Increased competition in “active” sectors like roads & expressways, resulting in margin pressures in 
the short term;

•	 Change in the Government philosophy for infrastructure spending;

•	 Any substantial change that might occur in the regulatory environment.

Outlook 

Over the past ten years, the Indian economy has grown at an average rate of  7.3% per year, with the per 
capita GDP increasing at an average rate of  4%. This growth in the Indian economy has fuelled demand 
for quality infrastructure services, which has led to increased infrastructure development in India. We 
believe that a significant proportion of  this growth has been a consequence of  increased PPP involvement 
in infrastructure. All this translates into a very positive and buoyant outlook for the Company.

In the near term, the Company views roads, ports, power, urban infrastructure (including water and waste 
water management & MRTS) and airports, as the key sectors for participation; while it views railways and 
special economic zones, as sectors for increased participation over a longer term.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy 

The Company has proper and adequate internal control systems to ensure that all assets are safeguarded 
and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those transactions are authorized, 
recorded and reported correctly. 

Material Developments in Human Resources 

The Company understands the significance of  human resource development in the continuing growth 
of  the Company and accordingly places tremendous thrust on Human Resource Management through 
various modes. Your Company endeavours to build organizational capabilities by helping its people to 
recognize their potentials through challenging assignments, involving increased responsibilities. 

The Company has a core strength of  32 employees. Apart from its own team, there are others employed 
at the SPV level, depending upon the SPV requirements. The core team of  employees comprises 
professionals holding formal qualifications in various disciplines like finance, engineering, management, 
law and accountancy. 

Cautionary Statement 

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections 
estimates and expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning applicable as per 
the securities laws and regulations. As ‘forward looking statements’ are based on certain assumptions 
and expectations of  future events over which the company exercises no control, the Company cannot 
guarantee their accuracy nor can it warrant that the same will be realized by the Company. Actual results 
could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Significant factors that could make a difference 
to the Company’s operations including domestic and international economic conditions affecting demand, 
supply and price conditions, changes in government regulations, tax regimes and other statutes etc. 
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Auditors Report

The Board of  Directors
Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of  Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited (‘GIPL’) Group, 
as at 31st March 2008, and also the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow statement 
for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of  the GIPL’s 
management and have been prepared by the management on the basis of  separate financial statements and other 
financial information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of  material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not audit the financial statements of  

(a)	 certain subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets of  Rs. 382,738,687 as at March 31, 2008 
and total income of  Rs. 63,515,840 and cash flows of  Rs. 8,012,657 for the year then ended; 

(b)	 certain joint venture Companies whose financial statements reflect total assets of  Rs. 3,614,105,483 as at 
March 31, 2008, the total income of  Rs. 562,955,535 and cash flows amounting to Rs. 59,591,235 for the 
year then ended, the Company’s share of  such assets, total income and cash flows being Rs. 1,562,467,138, 
Rs. 237,692,589 and Rs. 25,019,466 respectively and

(c)	 certain associates whose financial statements reflect a total loss Rs. 820,976 for the year ended March 31, 2008. 
The group’s share of  loss of  such associates being Rs. 273,385.

The abovementioned financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to 
us, and our opinion is based solely on the report of  other auditors except for certain joint ventures, whose financial 
statements reflect total assets of  Rs. 342,768,804 as at March 31, 2008 and cash flows of  Rs. 2,683,390 for the year 
then ended, the Group’s share of  such assets and cash flows being Rs. 170,959,845 and Rs. 1,341,715 respectively, 
which are based on un-audited financial statements certified by management of  the said joint ventures.

In respect of  the other subsidiaries, the audit has been conducted by one of  us who are the joint auditors of  
Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited for the standalone as well as the consolidated financial statements.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the GIPL’s management in accordance 
with the requirements of  Accounting Standards (AS) 21, Consolidated financial statements, Accounting Standards 
(AS) 23, Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting Standard 
(AS) 27, Financial Reporting of  Interests in Joint Ventures issued by the Institute of  Chartered Accountants of  
India.

Without qualifying our report, we draw attention to Note B 4 of  Schedule 18 of  the financial statements regarding 
the Early Completion Bonus accrued by two subsidiary Companies in earlier years and included in sundry debtors at 
March 31, 2008. The outcome of  the matter cannot be presently determined and hence no provision for any liability 
has been made in the financial statements.

Based on our audit and on consideration of  reports of  other auditors on separate financial statements and on the 
other financial information of  the components, and to the best of  our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, we are of  the opinion that the attached consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a)	 in the case of  the consolidated balance sheet, of  the state of  affairs of  the GIPL Group as at March 31, 2008;

(b)	 in the case of  the consolidated profit and loss account, of  the profit of  the GIPL Group for the year ended on 
that date; and

(c)	 in the case of  the consolidated cash flow statement, of  the cash flows of  the GIPL Group for the year ended on 
that date.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. For S. R. Batliboi & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

N. Jayendran Amit Majmudar
Partner Partner
M. No. 40441 M. No. 36656

Mumbai, Dated: May 21, 2008 Mumbai, Dated: May 21, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

 Schedule
No.

 As At 
March 31, 2008

 As At 
March 31, 2007

SOURCES OF FUNDS 
Shareholders’ Funds 
Share Capital 1  1,420,745,077  1,280,000,000 
Employees Stock Options 2  11,353,039 —
Warrant Issued —  100,000 
Reserves & Surplus 3  3,793,579,363  1,541,307,222 

  5,225,677,479  2,821,407,222 
Minority Interest  235,293,448  195,563,218 

Loan Funds       
Secured Loans 4  10,043,926,426  6,678,316,489 
Unsecured Loans 5  293,000,000 —

 10,336,926,426  6,678,316,489 
Deferred Tax Liability (Net)  85,025,111  46,146,326 

TOTAL  15,882,922,464  9,741,433,255 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS 
Fixed Assets (Net) 6 
Gross Block  6,930,398,263  6,773,163,638 
Less:	 Depreciation & Impairment  1,412,435,213  996,287,264 

Net Block  5,517,963,050  5,776,876,374 

Add:	 Capital Work-in-progress  6,302,886,014  2,002,567,227 

 11,820,849,064  7,779,443,601 
Goodwill on Consolidation 
[refer Note No. B (7) of  Schedule 18]  14,638,832  11,327,964 

Less: Amortisation  3,729,475  2,265,592 

 10,909,357  9,062,372 
Investments 7  989,230,608  53,918,772 
Current Assets, Loans and Advances  
Inventories  12,012,795  3,794,249 
Accrued Income  376,908,824  376,993,437 
Sundry Debtors 8  307,269,600  363,985,509 
Cash & Bank Balances 9  2,703,425,665  1,291,450,683 
Loans & Advances 10  431,797,645  284,200,896 

(A)   3,831,414,529  2,320,424,774 

Less:	 Current Liabilities and Provisions 11 
Current Liabilities  776,149,390  427,976,003 
Provisions  3,849,031  782,609 

(B)  779,998,421  428,758,612 

Net Current Assets	  (A – B)  3,051,416,108  1,891,666,162 

Miscellaneous Expenses to the extent not
written off  or adjusted 12  10,517,327  7,342,348 

TOTAL  15,882,922,464  9,741,433,255 

Notes to Financial Statements 18  

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of  these Financial Statements.

As per our report of  even date

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. For S. R. Batliboi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

N. Jayendran per Amit Majmudar Parvez Umrigar   Managing Director
Partner Partner    
Membership No. : 40441 Membership No. : 36656 Himanshu Parikh Director

Place	: Mumbai Sathis Chandran Company Secretary
Date	 : May 21, 2008    
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

 Schedule
No.

Year Ended
March 31, 2008

Year Ended
March 31, 2007

INCOME
Turnover and Operating Income 13  1,593,798,726  1,477,043,037 

Other Income 14  116,162,311  111,973,735 

 1,709,961,037 1,589,016,772 
EXPENDITURE
Operational Expenses 15  344,318,111  234,704,090 

Establishment Expenses 16  100,858,977  59,679,928 

Financial Costs 17  512,797,069  449,742,637 

Depreciation and Amortisation  416,090,308  402,287,940 

Amortisation of  Goodwill  1,463,883  2,265,592 

Preliminary and Share Issue Expenses 
written off  613,767  880,392 

 1,376,142,115 1,149,560,579 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND SHARE OF 
LOSS OF ASSOCIATE  333,818,922  439,456,193 

Add:	 Share of  Loss of  Associate   (273,385)   (6,580,843)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND AFTER SHARE 
OF LOSS OF ASSOCIATE  333,545,537  432,875,350 

Provision for Taxation:

Current  82,903,698  77,900,000 

Deferred  38,878,784  33,130,142 

Fringe Benefit tax  749,496  565,486 

 122,531,978  111,595,628 

PROFIT AFTER TAX     211,013,559     321,279,722 
Less:	 Short Provision for Taxation for 

earlier years  3,328,563  25,891,194 

Less:	 Transitional liability recognised 
pursuant to adoption of  Accounting 

	 Standard – 15 (Revised) “Employee 	
	 Benefits”  292,846  — 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  207,392,150  295,388,528 

Less:	 Profit after tax attributable to 
Minority Interest     20,911,420     20,873,066 

NET PROFIT     186,480,730     274,515,462 

Add:	 Retained Earnings brought forward     510,325,999     235,810,537 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet     696,806,729     510,325,999 

Earnings Per Share: 
[refer Note No. B (9) of  Schedule 18]

Basic  1.45  2.14 

Diluted  1.45  2.14 

Nominal Value of  Equity Shares in Rupees 10  10 

Notes to Financial Statements 18 

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of  these Financial Statements.

As per our report of  even date

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. For S. R. Batliboi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

N. Jayendran per Amit Majmudar Parvez Umrigar   Managing Director
Partner Partner    
Membership No. : 40441 Membership No. : 36656 Himanshu Parikh Director

Place	: Mumbai Sathis Chandran Company Secretary
Date	 : May 21, 2008    
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2008

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2007

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit before Tax and extraordinary items  333,545,537  432,875,350 

Adjustments for:

Employees Stock Options  11,353,039  — 

Depreciation & Amortisation  416,090,308  402,287,940 

Dividend Income  (729,807)  (2,346,392)

(Profit) on sale of  Investments  (45,185,476)  (17,613,739)

Interest (Net)  446,647,618  365,040,639 

Goodwill amortised  1,463,883  2,265,592 

Capital WIP written off  —  885,243 

Preliminary and Share Issue Expenses written off  613,767  880,392 

 830,253,332  751,399,675 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  1,163,798,869  1,184,275,025 

Adjustments for:

Trade and Other Receivables  (43,705,965)  (138,821,223)

Trade Payables & Working Capital Finance  125,145,813     (43,893,328)    

Inventories  (8,218,546)  (3,170,290)

 73,221,302  (185,884,841)

Cash Generated from Operations  1,237,020,171  998,390,184 

Direct Taxes paid  (159,367,936)  (98,430,210)

Cash flow before extraordinary items  1,077,652,235  899,959,974 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:

Capital Purchases after adjusting capital creditors  (4,386,304,928)     (2,137,314,790)    

Purchase of  Investments:       

Joint Venture/Group Companies  (489,200)  (15,298,657)

Mutual Funds  (6,964,613,172)     (1,788,172,298)    

Sale of  Investments:

Joint Venture/Group Companies  713,385  — 

Mutual Funds  6,051,671,951  1,777,657,950 

Fixed Deposit with Banks (above 90 days)  (21,700,000)  — 

Intercorporate Deposits   

Granted  (890,777,773) (174,356,000) 

Refund Received  905,000,000  — 

Advances to Joint Venture/Group Companies  3,511,494  (6,315,763)

Goodwill on acquisition of  stake in Joint Venture  (3,310,869)  (30,000,000)

Share Application Money Pending Allotment  (22,594,800)  20,319,500 

Capital WIP written off  —  (885,243)

Interest received  73,676,748     79,038,947    

Advances received for purchase of  equity shares  26,520,000  — 

Profit on sale of  Investments  45,185,476  17,613,739 

Dividend received  729,807  2,346,392 

Net Cash from Investment activities  (5,182,781,881)  (2,255,366,223)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2008 (Contd.)

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2008

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2007

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from share application money  2,377,573,203  15,000,000 

Proceeds from borrowings  4,135,539,807  1,901,758,466 

Repayment of  Loans  (477,839,033)  (340,588,000)

Minority Interest Contribution  18,818,810  (760)    

Interest Paid  (511,643,106)     (443,460,710)    

Preliminary Expenses  (3,788,746)  (4,491,855)

Share Issue Expenses  (43,256,307)  (2,462,984)

Net Cash from Financing Activities  5,495,404,628  1,125,754,157 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS  1,390,274,982  (229,652,092)

Closing Balances  2,681,725,665  1,291,450,683 

Opening Balances     1,291,450,683     1,521,102,775 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS  1,390,274,982  (229,652,092)

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS:

         

Cash and Cheques on hand     400,275  1,504,891 

With Banks :

On Current Account  153,652,187  83,016,808 

On Current Account — IPO Proceeds  2,377,673,203  — 

On Deposit Account  171,700,000  1,206,928,984 

Total Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents  2,703,425,665  1,291,450,683 

Less: Fixed Deposits above 90 days  21,700,000  — 

    2,681,725,665    1,291,450,683 

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of  these Financial Statements.

As per our report of  even date

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. For S. R. Batliboi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

N. Jayendran per Amit Majmudar Parvez Umrigar   Managing Director
Partner Partner    
Membership No. : 40441 Membership No. : 36656 Himanshu Parikh Director

Place	: Mumbai Sathis Chandran Company Secretary
Date	 : May 21, 2008    
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As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

SCHEDULE ‘1’: SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
200,000,000 Equity Shares of  Rs. 10/- each  2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up:

144,550,000 (Previous Year: 128,000,000) Equity  
Shares of  Rs. 10/- each  1,445,500,000  1,280,000,000 

[Out of  the above 105,600,000 (Previous year: 
105,600,000) Equity shares of  Rs. 10/- each fully 
paid held by Gammon India Limited – the holding 
company]
[The Company has issued employee stock options to 
employees during the year ended March 31, 2008 
[refer Note No. B (15) of  Schedule 18]. At March 31,
2008 1,565,000 options (Previous year: Nil) are issued 
and outstanding].

Less: Amount receivable on allotment of  equity shares  24,754,923 —

 1,420,745,077  1,280,000,000 

 1,420,745,077  1,280,000,000 

SCHEDULE ‘2’: EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS:
Employee stock option outstanding  30,360,000 —

Less:	 Deferred Employee compensation outstanding 

	 [For Stock Option Outstanding Details refer Note 
No. B (15) of  Schedule 18]  19,006,961 —

 11,353,039 —

SCHEDULE ‘3’: RESERVES AND SURPLUS:
General Reserve  18,200,000  18,200,000 

Security premium, beginning of  the year  1,012,781,223  1,000,244,207 

Add	:	 Security premium during the period/year  2,598,350,000  15,000,000 

Less	:	 Security Premium receivable on allotment of  
equity shares  361,421,874 —

 3,249,709,349  1,015,244,207 

Less: Share issue expenses (relating to prior year)  10,816,209 —

Less: Share issue expenses during the year  160,320,506  2,462,984 

Security premium, end of  the year  3,078,572,634  1,012,781,223 

Profit and Loss Account     696,806,729     510,325,999 

     3,793,579,363     1,541,307,222 

SCHEDULE ‘4’: SECURED LOANS
Term Loans from the Banks [refer note B (10) of  
Schedule 18]  10,036,434,677  6,671,978,703 

Interest accrued and due on loans  7,491,749  6,337,786 

     10,043,926,426  6,678,316,489 

SCHEDULE ‘5’: UNSECURED LOANS
Intercorporate Loan from Holding Company – Gammon 
India Ltd.  293,000,000 —

 293,000,000  — 

SCHEDULES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Acct.indd   54 8/16/2008   4:44:46 PM



7th Annual Report 2008

55

As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

SCHEDULE ‘7’: INVESTMENTS
Long term Investments unless otherwise stated:

Investment in Associates (Fully paid-up equity shares)

[refer Note No. B (3) of  Schedule 18]
2,143,950 (Previous year: 2,143,950) Eversun Sparkle 
Maritime Services Pvt. Ltd. 14,585,272  14,858,657 
Nil (Prevous year: 19,500) Gorakhpur Infrastructure 
Project Ltd. —  195,000 
Nil (Previous year: 24,500) Kosi Bridge Infrastructure 
Co. Ltd. —  245,000 

24,470 (Previous year: Nil) Modern Tollroads Ltd.  244,700 —
24,450 (Previous year: Nil) ATSL Infrastructure 
Projects Ltd.  244,500 —

    15,074,472  15,298,657 
Non Trade Investments (Fully paid up equity shares, 
stated at cost)
76,800 (Previous year: 76,800) Canara Bank Ltd.  2,688,000     2,688,000    

3,200 (Previous year: 3,200) Vijaya Bank Ltd.  76,800  76,800 
1,160 (Previous year: 1,160) Tata Consultancy 
Services Ltd.  493,000  493,000 

10,530 (Previous year: 10,530) Allahabad Bank Ltd.  863,460  863,460 
52,024 (Previous year: 52,024) Infrastructure 
Development Finance Co. Ltd.  1,768,816  1,768,816 

 5,890,076  5,890,076 
Current Investments
In Liquid Mutual Funds (at cost)  923,455,569  10,514,348 
Share application money pending allotment  44,810,491  22,215,691 

     989,230,608     53,918,772 

SCHEDULE  ‘6’: FIXED ASSETS
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET

As At
1.04.2007

Additions 
during the 

year
Deductions/
Adjustments

As At
31.03.2008

Upto 
31.03.2007

For the 
year

Deductions/
Adjustments

As At
31.03.2008

As At
31.03.2008

As At
31.03.2007

TANGIBLE ASSETS:

Buildings  451,526  —  —  451,526  40,400  7,380  —  47,780  403,746  411,126 

Freehold Property  7,983,713  14,148,130  —  22,131,843  —  —  —  —  22,131,843  7,983,713 

Plant and Machinery  334,420,786  14,712,026  —  349,132,812  16,695,543  15,976,502  —  32,672,045  316,460,767  317,725,243 

Furniture & Fixtures  5,294,835  449,121  77,606  5,666,350  297,808  342,817  25,410  615,215  5,051,135  4,997,027 

Motor Vehicles  5,570,886  1,887,364  —  7,458,250  662,985  567,308  —  1,230,293  6,227,957  4,907,901 

Office Equipments  2,098,291  405,309  75,675  2,427,925  182,033  118,271  19,388  280,916  2,147,009  1,916,258 

Computers  2,062,210  1,724,455  —  3,786,665  386,292  466,226  —  852,518  2,934,147  1,675,918 

Project Berths  862,860,396  —  938,499  861,921,897  59,803,398  32,630,918  —  92,434,316  769,487,581  802,927,446 

Project Bridge  257,438,683  —  —  257,438,683  75,788,624  13,806,178  —  89,594,801  167,843,882  181,650,059 

Project Road  5,044,982,312  —  —  5,044,982,312  824,147,272  333,944,150  —  1,158,091,421  3,886,890,891 4,220,835,040 

Total  6,523,163,638  33,326,405  1,091,780  6,555,398,263  978,004,355  397,859,750  44,798  1,375,819,305  5,179,578,958 5,545,029,731 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

Purchase of  O & M Rights  250,000,000  —  —  250,000,000  18,282,909  18,332,999  —  36,615,908  213,384,092  231,717,091 

Upfront Fees to BPT  —  125,000,000  —  125,000,000  —  —  —  —  125,000,000  — 

Total  250,000,000  125,000,000  —  375,000,000  18,282,909  18,332,999  —  36,615,908  338,384,092  231,717,091 

CAPITAL WORK IN 
PROGRESS 

   

Expenses Capitalised    6,302,886,014 2,002,567,227 

Deprecitaion Capitalised   102,441 

GRAND TOTAL  6,773,163,638 158,326,405 1,091,780  6,930,398,263 996,287,264  416,090,308 44,798 1,412,435,213  11,820,849,064 7,779,314,049 

Previous year  6,231,215,138  543,164,454  1,215,954  6,773,163,638  594,081,883  402,287,940  128,635  996,287,264  7,779,443,601    

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
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As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

SCHEDULE ‘7’: INVESTMENTS (Contd.)

Summary of Investments:    

Aggregate Book Value of  Unquoted Investments  938,530,041  25,813,005 

Aggregate Book Value of  Quoted Investments  5,890,076  5,890,076 

Aggregate Book Value of  Other Investments  44,810,491  22,215,691 

Market Value of  Quoted Investments  27,047,531  27,640,917 

Repurchase price of  Mutual Fund Units    —  10,514,348 

SCHEDULE ‘8’: SUNDRY DEBTORS

(Unsecured, considered good)

Outstanding for over six months   221,503,988  268,645,934 

Other Debts     85,765,612     95,339,575 

  307,269,600  363,985,509 

SCHEDULE ‘9’: CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash on Hand  400,275  642,518 

Funds in Transit  —  862,373 

Balances with Scheduled Banks:

in Current Accounts  153,652,187  83,016,808 

in Escrow A/c for IPO proceeds  2,377,673,203 —

in Fixed Deposits  171,700,000  1,206,928,984 

2,703,025,390 1,289,945,792 

  2,703,425,665  1,291,450,683 

SCHEDULE ‘10’: LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind for value to be 
received  104,978,443  13,786,576 

Interest Accrued Receivable  1,143,916  8,671,213 

Dues from Joint Venture Companies and/or Associates     2,804,269  6,350,663 

Loan to Vizag Seaport Private Ltd.   46,222,186  46,222,186 

Deposit with Joint Stock Companies  160,133,773  174,356,000 

Advance Taxes Paid  316,789,200     169,152,235    

Less: Provision for Taxation  241,078,535  165,827,749 

 75,710,665  3,324,486 

Other Deposits  21,690,715  4,436,855 

Service Tax Recoverable  5,476,209  11,334,877 

Prepaid Expenses  13,637,469  15,718,040 

    431,797,645     284,200,896 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
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As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

SCHEDULE ‘11’: CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Creditors

For Expenses  66,695,581  73,112,333 

For Share Issue Expenses  127,880,408  — 

 194,575,989  73,112,333 

Dues to Holding Company – Gammon India Limited     450,873,772  272,353,158 

Dues to Modern Tollroads Limited for purchase of  
equity shares

 26,520,000 —

Advance received from Client  21,983,791  28,500,000 

Dues to Lenders  7,156,568  6,911,768 

Other Liabilites     75,039,270  47,098,744 

     776,149,390     427,976,003 

Provisions:       

Provision for Staff  Benefits

Provision for Leave Encashment  2,541,110  334,700 

Provision for Gratuity  1,307,921  447,909 

    3,849,031     782,609 

SCHEDULE ‘12’: MISCELLEANEOUS EXPENSES 
TO THE EXTENT NOT 
WRITTEN OFF OR ADJUSTED

Preliminary Expenses  3,166,243  2,879,553 

Share Issue Expenses  7,351,084  4,462,795 

 10,517,327  7,342,348 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Year ended 
March 31, 2008

Year ended 
March 31, 2007

SCHEDULE ‘13’:	TURNOVER AND OPERATING 
INCOME

Operation & Maintenance Revenues  143,020,096  143,416,064 

Income from Port Operations  237,642,790  128,602,126 

Annuity Revenues  1,166,020,000  1,166,020,000 

Toll Proceeds  35,517,675  36,508,405 

Miscellaneous Receipts  11,598,165  2,496,442 

 1,593,798,726  1,477,043,037 

SCHEDULE ‘14’: OTHER INCOME 

Interest Income:

Deposits with Joint Stock Companies  32,486,278  19,863,753 

Others  33,663,173  64,838,245 

    66,149,451     84,701,998 

Miscellaneous Income:

Dividend Income  729,807  2,346,392 

Profit on Sale of  Investments  45,185,476  17,613,739 

Miscellaneous Income  4,097,577  7,311,606 

 50,012,860  27,271,737 

 116,162,311  111,973,735 
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Year ended 
March 31, 2008

Year ended 
March 31, 2007

SCHEDULE ‘15’: OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

Road Operation & Maintenance Expenses  186,093,725  169,416,309 

Bridge Operations Expenses  4,555,486  4,922,665 

Port Operational Expenses  153,668,900  60,365,116 

 344,318,111  234,704,090 

SCHEDULE ‘16’: ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES

Administration Expenses  1,987,443  2,094,186 

Staff  Expenses  61,240,342  28,474,484 

Professional/Legal Expenses  18,768,711  16,458,159 

Travelling, Leave Passage and Motor Car Expenses  9,440,398  1,038,718 

Office Rent  1,200,000  1,222,500 

Directors Fees  150,000  45,000 

Telephone Expenses  729,854  4,237,619 

Insurance Charges  203,380  92,585 

Miscellaneous Expenses  4,856,333  3,498,712 

Auditors Remuneration:

	 – Audit Fees  2,282,516  1,632,722 

	 – Capital WIP written off —  885,243 

 100,858,977  59,679,928 

SCHEDULE ‘17’: FINANCIAL COSTS

Interest paid on:

On Fixed Period Loans  502,925,853  463,946,004 

Interest Paid (Others)  9,219,963  178 

 512,145,816     463,946,182 

Other Finance Charges  3,979,200 2,358,052 

 516,125,016  466,304,234 

Less: Transferred to CWIP 3,327,947  16,561,597 

 512,797,069     449,742,637 
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SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

SCHEDULE 18: NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.	 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 (a)	 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

	 	 The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of GAMMON INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS LTD. 
(“the Company”) and its Subsidiary companies (the Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to as ‘the Group’), 
Associates and Joint Ventures in the form of jointly controlled entities. The Consolidated Financial Statement has been 
prepared on the following basis:

	 	 The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line by line basis by 
adding the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances 
and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses as per Accounting Standard - 21 “Consolidated Financial 
Statements” issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘AS-21’).

	 	 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform policies for like transactions and other events in 
similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial 
statements.

	 	 The excess of cost of investments of the Company over its share of equity in the Subsidiary is recognised as goodwill. The 
excess of share of equity of Subsidiary over the cost of investments is recognised as capital reserve.

		  Interests in Joint Ventures

	 	 The Company’s interests in Joint Ventures in the nature of Jointly controlled entities are included in these consolidated 
financial statements using the proportionate consolidation method as per the Accounting Standard – 27 “Financial Reporting 
of Interests in Joint Ventures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘AS-27’). The group combines its 
share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the joint venture with similar items, on a line by line basis.

		  Investment in Associates

	 	 Investments in Associate Companies are accounted under the equity method as per the Accounting Standard – 23 “Accounting 
for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(‘AS-23’). 

	 	 Under the equity method, the investment in associates is carried in the balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition changes 
in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. The income statement reflects the Group’s share of the results of 
operations of the associates.

	 	 The excess of the Company’s cost of investment over its share of net assets in the associate on the date of acquisition of 
investment is accounted for as goodwill. The excess of the company’s share of net assets in the associate over the cost of 
its investment is accounted for as capital reserve.

	 	 Goodwill/Capital Reserve is included/adjusted in the carrying amount of the investment.

		  Use of Estimates

	 	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although 
these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ 
from these estimates.

	 (b)	 REVENUE RECOGNITION

		  Infrastructure Development Business:

	 	 The toll fees collection from the users is accounted when the amount is due and recovered.

	 	 The cash compensation on account of multiple entry of cars has been accounted on accrual basis as per the order of 
Government of Kerala for which Supplementary Concession Agreement is being worked out between the Government of 
Kerala, Greater Cochin Development Authority and Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited. (a subsidiary of the 
Company).

	 	 The Company earns an annuity income from some of its Build, Operate, Transfer (‘BOT’) projects which is recognised on a 
time basis over the period during which the annuity is earned. Revenues from bonus and other claims are recognised upon 
acceptance from customer/counterparty.

	 	 Revenue by way of berth hire charges, dust suppression charges, cargo handling charges, plot rent, wharfage, barge freight, 
other charges etc. are recognised on an accrual basis and is billed as per the terms of the contract with the customers at 
the rates approved by Tariff Authority for Marine Ports (TAMP) as the related services are performed.

	 	 Other income is recognised on an accrual basis when the same is due.

		  Developer Fees:

	 	 Revenue on Professional services rendered are recognised on accrual basis.
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		  Operations and Maintenance Revenues:

	 	 Revenue on Operations & Maintenance (O & M) contracts are recognised over the period of the contract as per the terms 
of the contract. 

		  Interest Income: 

	 	 Interest Income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

		  Dividend Income:

	 	 Dividend is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet date. Dividend 
from subsidiaries is recognised even if same is declared after the balance sheet date but pertains to period on or before 
the date of balance sheet as per the requirement of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.

	 (c)	 FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

	 	 Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase 
price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition of its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to 
acquisition of fixed assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the 
extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

	 	 Depreciation on the Project Assets constructed and/or acquired by the Company as per the Concession Agreements are 
amortized over the period of the rights given under the License Agreement/Concession Agreement.

	 	 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on the Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner laid down in Schedule 
XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 or the rates based on the estimated useful lives of the fixed assets, whichever is higher. 
Depreciation on assets purchased/installed during the year/period is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of such 
purchase/installation.

	 	 Intangible assets comprise of rights of Operations and Maintenance ('O & M') and an amount paid to Mumbai Port Trust 
towards upfront fees for construction and operation of an offshore terminal (License Fees Intangible). The O & M intangible 
results in income stream for the Company for a period of 14 years. The rights are therefore amortised over the period of 14 
years. The License Fees intangible will be amortised over the remaining concession period of 30 years on commencement 
of the port terminal.

	 (d)	 IMPAIRMENT

	 	 The carrying amounts of assets, (including goodwill), are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of 
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost 
of capital. 

	 	 After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

	 e)	  INVESTMENTS

	 	 Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. 
All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value 
determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution 
in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of long term investments.

	 (f)	 INVENTORIES

	 	 Stores and materials are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price 
less estimated cost necessary to make the sale. The FIFO method of inventory valuation is used to determine the cost. 

	 (g)	 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

		  Initial recognition

	 	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amount the 
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

		  Conversion

	 	 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of 
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; 
non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

		  Exchange differences

	 	 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting company's monetary items at rates 
different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year/period, or reported in previous financial statements, 
are recognised as income or as expenses in the year/period in which they arise except those arising from investments in 
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non-integral operations. Exchange differences arising in respect of fixed assets acquired from outside India On or before 
accounting period commencing after December 7, 2006 are capitalized as a part of fixed asset.

	 (h)	 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

	 	 Tax expense comprises of current, deferred and fringe benefit tax. Current income tax and fringe benefit tax is measured at 
the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act. 

	 	 Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year/period timing differences between taxable income and accounting 
income for the year/period and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax 
rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only 
to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax 
losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can 
be realised against future taxable profits. 

	 	 At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred 
tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

	 (i)	 PRELIMINARY AND SHARE ISSUE EXPENSES

	 	 The preliminary expenses and share issue expenses incurred upto March 31, 2004, are amortised equally over a period 
of ten and five years respectively. Share Issue expenses incurred from April 1, 2004 onwards are charged to the Security 
Premium Account, if available, or to the Profit and Loss Account.

	 (j)	 OPERATING LEASE

	 	 Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term are 
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a 
straight line basis over the lease term.

	 (k)	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

	 	 Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributed to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

	 	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

	 (l)	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

	 	 Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and contributions are charged to the 
Profit and Loss Account for the year/period when the contributions are due.

	 	 Gratuity, a defined benefit obligation is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each year/
period.

	 	 Leave encashment is recognised on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each year.

	 	 Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to profit and loss account and are not deferred. 

	 (m)	 EMPLOYEE SHARE – BASED PAYMENTS (ESOP)

	 	 The Company uses the intrinsic value method of accounting prescribed by the Guidance Note (‘GN’) on ‘Accounting for 
employee share-based payments’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) (‘the guidance note’) to 
account for its Employee Stock Option Scheme (the ‘ESOP’ Scheme) read with SEBI (Employees stock option scheme or 
Employees Stock Purchase Guidelines,1999). 

	 (n)	 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

	 	 A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not 
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance 
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

	 	 Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in notes to accounts. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor 
recorded in financial statements. 

	 (o)	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	 	 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less.
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B.	 OTHER NOTES 

	 Significant accounting policies and notes to this consolidated financial statement are intended to serve as a means of informative 
disclosure and a guide to better understanding the consolidated position of the companies. Recognising this purpose, the 
company has disclosed only such policies and notes from the individual financial statements, which fairly presents the needed 
disclosures.

	 1.	 Subsidiaries

	 	 The following Subsidiary Companies (incorporated in India) have been consolidated in these financial statement as per 
AS 21:

Name of the Subsidiary  Voting power 
and beneficial 
interest as at 

March 31, 2008

Voting power 
and beneficial 
interest as at 

March 31, 2007

Andhra Expressway Ltd. (‘AEL’) 93.50% 93.50%

Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Company Ltd. (‘CBICL’) 97.66% 97.66%

Gammon Logistics Limited (‘GLL”) 99.99% —

Gammon Projects Developers Ltd. (‘GPDL’) 100.00% 100.00%

Gorakhpur Infrastructure Company Ltd. (‘GICL’) 94.90% —

Haryana Biomass Power Limited (‘HBPL’) 99.99% —

Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Ltd. (‘KBICL’) 100.00% —

Marine Project Services Limited (‘MPSL’) 99.99% —

Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd. (‘MNEL’) 79.99% 79.90%

Rajahmundry Expressway Ltd. (‘REL’) 93.50% 93.50%

Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Ltd. (‘SHVPL’) 100.00% 100.00%

Tidong Hydro Power Limited (‘THPL’) 99.99% —

	 	 As part of its overall business plans, the Company has been acquiring beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights from 
its holding company in consideration of payment of deposit which, along with the Company’s direct shareholdings, has 
resulted in the Company having control over 51% in various SPVs as listed above. The details of the deposits outstanding 
and the resultant beneficial interest and voting rights are tabulated hereunder:

Name of the Company As at March 31, 2008 As at March 31, 2007

No. of shares Amount Paid % of holding No. of shares Amount Paid % of holding

Andhra Expressway Ltd. 
(‘AEL’) 12,905,000 164,761,200 44.50% 12,905,000 164,761,200 44.50%

Gorakhpur Infrastructure 
Company Ltd. (‘GICL’) 95,96,923 95,969,230 26.01% — — —

Kosi Bridge Infrastructure 
Company Ltd. (‘KBICL’) 6,284,146 62,841,460 26.01% — — —

Rajahmundry Expressway 
Ltd. (‘REL’) 12,905,000 163,618,800 44.50% 12,905,000 163,618,800 44.50%

	 	 (a)	 The Company had on August 31, 2007 entered into two separate agreements with GIL by which it acquired the 
beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights in respect of 9,596,923 equity shares of Gorakhpur Infrastructure 
Company Limited (‘GICL’) and 6,284,146 equity shares of Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited (‘KBICL’) (each 
representing 26.01% of the beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights in GICL and KBICL) in consideration of 
payment of deposit for acquisition of these shares of Rs. 158,810,690. By virtue of these agreements and the equity 
share holding in these companies, GICL and KBICL have become subsidiaries of the Company. 

	 	 (b)	 Under the Concession Agreement dated October 27, 1999, executed between CBICL, Government of Kerala (GOK), 
Greater Cochin Development Authority (GCDA) and Gammon India Limited dated January 6, 2001; the entire project has 
been assigned to CBICL as a Concessionaire for the purpose of developing, operating and maintaining the infrastructure 
facility on BOT basis for 13 years and nine months. Subsequently a Supplementary Concession Agreement is being 
worked out as per the Government of Kerala’s Order Nos. G. O. (M.S.) No. 11/2005/PWD dated January 24, 2005 and 
G. O. (M.S.) No. 16/2005/PWD dated March 1, 2005 between the Government of Kerala, Greater Cochin Development 
Authority and CBICL. In terms of the order, the period of concession has been increased by 6 years and CBICL is 
entitled to yearly annuity receipts which it is accounting as revenue. CBICL has since not made any provision against 
the said receivables of Rs. 62,886,256. 

	 	 (c)	 CBICL has extended a Term Loan of Rs. 8,00,00,000/- (Rs. Eight Crores only) to VSPL, which is convertible at par into 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each on April 1, 2008. 
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	 	 (d)	 Warrant Issued to Investor

	 	 	 Pursuant to the approval of the members of CBICL at an EGM, a Warrant Subscription Agreement between the CBICL, 
Gammon India Ltd. and AMIF I Ltd. (‘the investor’) has been executed on November 30, 2005. Based on the agreement 
CBICL has issued an Optionally Convertible Warrant on a preferential basis which gives the investor an option to 
subscribe to 25% of the issued and paid share capital of CBICL on a fully diluted basis, on a preferential allotment 
basis, at any time after January 1, 2011 but before March 31, 2011, by paying to CBICL, the fair value thereon. As per 
the Put and Call option of the said agreement, CBICL has exercised the option for repurchasing the warrant.

	 	 (e)	 Effect of acquisition of subsidiaries during the year on Financial Statements.

Particulars Gorakhpur 
Infrastructure 

Company 
Limited ‘GICL’

Kosi Bridge 
Infrastructure 

Company Limited 
‘KBICL’

Assets:
Fixed Assets (incl. Capital WIP) 1,594,265,422  846,016,665 
Balances with Bank 11,174,650 2,523,320
Other assets 30,000 1,636,603
Miscellaneous Expenses 4,041,332` 2,665,955
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities 7,007,813 5,896,915
Secured Loans 1,077,557,703 557,500,000
Dues to Holding Company 155,975,388 47,840,628
Profit and Loss A/c. — —

	 2.	 Jointly Controlled Entities

	 	 The following Jointly Controlled Entities have been considered applying AS-27 on the basis of audited accounts (except 
stated other wise) for the year ended March 31, 2008. 

	 	 (a)	 Details of Joint Ventures entered into by the Company.

Sr. 
No

Name of the Joint Venture % of Interest 
as at March 31, 

2008
1. Vizag Seaport Private Ltd. (‘VSPL’) 42.22%
2. Gammon L & T Infra MRTS Ltd. (‘GLIML’) 50%
3. Punjab Biomass Power Ltd. (‘PBPL’) 50%
4. Indira Container Terminal Private Ltd. (ICTPL)* 50%
5. SEZ Adityapur Ltd. (‘SEZAL’)* 38%

	 	 	 * - As per unaudited Management accounts.

	 	 	 The Company had on August 31, 2007 entered into an agreement with GIL for acquisition of beneficial, controlling 
interest and voting rights in respect of 8,518,068 equity shares of Indira Container Terminal Private Ltd. (‘ICTPL’). 
Under this agreement when ICTPL shares are allotted to GIL, the Company would deposit to GIL, equivalent to GIL's 
subscription amount for the respective shares to acquire the abovementioned beneficial, controlling interest and voting 
rights. As a consequence of this agreement the Company’s beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights in ICTPL 
aggregate to 50% of ICTPL and is considered for proportionate consolidation to the extent of 50%.

	 	 (b)	 The proportionate share of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the Joint Ventures consolidated in the accounts 
is tabulated hereunder: 

Balance Sheet March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007
Assets
Fixed Assets  1,362,344,279 1,208,606,093
Less: Depreciation 126,169,192 77,117,708
Fixed Asset (Net) 1,236,175,087 1,131,488,385
Capital WIP  145,946,922 96,751,778
Current Assets:
Inventories  10,651,429 1,044,024
Sundry Debtors 43,866,745 11,111,629
Cash and Bank Balances  45,873,084 21,094,260
Loan and Advances  60,602,728 25,418,575
Total Current Assets (A)  160,993,986 58,668,488
Current Liabilities (B)  109,056,441 65,333,283
Net Current Assets (A-B)  51,937,545 (6,664,795)
Preliminary and Share Issue Exp  277,060 240,173
Total Assets  1,434,336,614 1,221,815,541
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Liabilities March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Loan Funds:

Secured Loans  894,228,723 842,904,489

Unsecured Loans — —

Deferred Tax Liability  56,470,413 36,731,441

Reserves & Surplus:

Opening balance of retained earnings  (141,650,414) (94,697,884)

Less: Loss for the period  (72,051,376) (42,129,601)

Total Liabilities 736,997,346 742,808,445

Income Statement March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Income  237,692,589 128,656,063

Less:

Operation & Maintenance Expenses  153,668,900 60,365,116

Administration Expenses  5,504,970 3,498,552

Finance Cost  76,243,484 53,475,876

Depreciation 48,962,738 36,590,077

Preliminary/Share Expenses Written Off  211,111 492,615

Capital WIP written off — 885,243

Total Expenses  284,591,203 155,307,479

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (46,898,614) (26,651,416)

Provision for Tax  19,860,384 15,478,185

Transitional Liability (AS-15) 292,846 —

Profit/(Loss) After Tax (67,051,844) (42,129,601)

	 3.	 Associates

	 	 The following Associate has been accounted for on one line basis applying the equity method in accordance with the 
Accounting Standard (AS) – 23 “Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”.

Name of the Company % Share 
held

Original 
Cost of 

Investment

Goodwill/ 
Capital 
Reserve

Adjusted/
Accumulated 
Loss up to 
March 31, 

2007

Dividend/ 
Prior Period 
adjustment

Loss for the 
year ended 
March 31, 

2008

Carrying 
amount of 

Investments 
as on March 

31, 2008

Eversun Sparkle Maritime 
Services Pvt. Ltd. 33.30% 21,439,500 (5,552,678)  (6,580,843) —  (273,385) 14,585,272

Modern Toll Roads 
Limited 48.94% 244,700 — — — — 244,700

ATSL Infrastructure 
Projects Ltd. 48.90% 244,500 — — — — 244,500

Total 15,074,472

	 4.	 Sundry Debtors 

		  Bonus recoverable from the NHAI

	 	 Sundry debtors also include Rs. 153,969,340/- of Early Completion Bonus receivable from the National Highways Authority 
of India ('NHAI') accrued in earlier years by AEL and REL under the Contract which has been disputed by the NHAI. The 
said companies, however, believe that the same is good and fully recoverable, and hence, no provision has been considered 
necessary against this for any amounts not recoverable. AEL and REL have post year end initiated arbitration proceedings 
for recovery of bonus.

		  Recovery of VAT from annuity payments

	 	 On the basis of an interim order of the Honourable Andhra Pradesh High Court, the NHAI recovered Rs. 92,049,601 being 
the VAT @ 4% from the annuities paid to AEL and REL by NHAI (including all annuities of all past years which had been 
fully paid by NHAI to the AEL and REL). 

	 	 The interim order had directed NHAI to transfer this amount as a Fixed Deposit in any nationalised bank pending the final 
order of the Honourable High Court. The Honourable High Court on April 12, 2007 passed the final order accepting the 
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Company’s position and directed NHAI to refund the said amount to the Company. An amount of Rs. 44,659,200 received 
is adjusted against Sundry Debtors.

	 5.	 Initial Public Offer

	 	 The Company has during the year made an Initial Public Offer of 16,550,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of 
Rs. 157 per share. The equity shares pursuant to the offer were allotted on March 27, 2008. An amount of Rs. 247,208,285 
and Rs. 138,968,512 is due from Retail and HNI category of Shareholders as at March 31, 2008 towards Equity Capital 
and Security Premium to whom equity shares were allotted in the Initial Public Offer. The total share issue expenses of 
Rs. 171,136,715 has been charged to the Security Premium account. All the funds collected are lying in escrow account 
as at March 31, 2008. 

	 6.	 Deferred tax

	 	 The break up of Deferred Tax Liability and Assets are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Deferred Tax Liability:

On Account of Depreciation  85,025,111 51,787,920

Deferred Tax Asset:

On Account of Unabsorbed Losses & Depreciation (—) (5,641,594)

Net Deferred Tax Liability 85,025,111 46,146,326

	 	 AEL and REL, are eligible for a 10-year tax holiday under Section 80 IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The deferred tax 
liability would get reversed during the tax holiday period and have not been recognised in the accounts in accordance with 
Accounting Standard – 22 “Accounting for taxes on Income” issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

	 7.	 Capital Reserve and Goodwill

	 	 The details of Goodwill and Capital Reserve are as under.

Particulars March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Goodwill:

— CBICL 13,425,584 13,425,584

— PBPL 30,000,000 30,000,000

— GICL 2,063,995 —

— KBICL 1,246,874 —

— VSPL 24,673,807 24,673,807

—  ICTPL — —

71,410,260 68,099,391

Capital Reserve:

— AEL 37,894,737 37,894,737

— REL 18,876,690 18,876,690

Net of Goodwill over Capital Reserve 14,638,833 11,327,964

Goodwill amortised  3,729,475 2,265,592

Net Goodwill/(Capital reserve)  10,909,357 9,062,372

	 	 Hitherto the Company was following the policy of amortising the goodwill on consolidation over a period of 5 years. 
Accordingly in the accounts drawn up to September 30, 2007, the Company has amortised the goodwill for 6 months. On 
review of its policy of amortising the goodwill, extant accounting standards and generally accepted accounting principles 
followed, the Company has decided to adopt the policy of not amortising the goodwill but testing the same for impairment 
on the said balance sheet date. On account of the change in the method of amortising goodwill, the goodwill amortisation 
of the period from October 1, 2007 to March 31, 2008 of Rs. 1,463,883 has not been carried out. The management has 
reviewed any possible impairment and has concluded that there is no impairment in the goodwill on acquisition of shares. 
On account of this change the consolidated profit before tax is higher by Rs. 1,463,883.

	 8.	 Remuneration to auditors

	 	 Remuneration to Auditors of the subsidiaries not audited by any of the Joint Auditors of the Company is grouped with 
Professional Fees. The remuneration to the auditors does not include Rs. 5,623,004 being the fees related to the work 
carried out for the Initial Public Offer that the company has done which is debited as part of Share Issue expenses to the 
Security Premium Account.
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	 9.	 Earnings per share

	 	 Earnings Per Share (EPS) = Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders/Weighted Number of Shares Outstanding.

As at March 
31, 2008

As at March 
31, 2007

Net Profit for the Period 186,495,610 274,515,462

Weighted average Number of Shares outstanding during the year – Basic 128,192,801 128,000,000

Weighted average Number of Shares outstanding during the year – Diluted 128,533,227 128,000,000

Earnings per Share-Basic (Rs.) 1.45 2.14

Earnings per Share-Diluted (Rs.) 1.45 2.14

		  Reconciliation of weighted number of outstanding during the year

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs. per share) 10 10

For Basic EPS:

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 128,000,000 128,000,000

Add: Issue of Equity Shares through Initial Public Offer [refer note B (5) of 
Schedule 18] 14,074,508 —

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of year 142,074,508 128,000,000

Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of the year 128,192,801 128,000,000

For Dilutive EPS:

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 128,000,000 128,000,000

Add: Issue of Equity Shares through Initial Public Offer [refer note B (5) of 
Schedule 18] 14,074,508 —

Add: Issue of Equity shares under Options as on March 31, 2008 [refer note B (15) 
of Schedule 18] 1,565,000 —

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of year 143,639,508 —

Weighted average number of Dilutive Equity shares at the end of the year 128,533,227 —

	 	 Note: While computing weighted average number of shares outstanding, equity shares allotted on March 27, 2008 in the 
Initial Public Offer of the Company has been considered.

	 10.	 Security for loans availed by AEL, REL, VSPL, MNEL, GICL and KBICL

	 	 Secured Loans in the consolidated financial statements comprises following loans of SPVs’.

Particulars Amount

AEL  1,996,380,000

GICL  1,077,500,000

KBICL  557,500,000

MNEL  3,282,400,000

REL  2,235,860,000

VSPL  886,667,568

PBPL  127,109

Total 10,036,434,677

	 	 These loans on the books of project SPV companies are project finance loans, secured principally by the project assets 
(immovable and movable), project contracts and future cash flow from these projects. The lenders of these projects have a 
“very limited recourse” to the sponsor, viz. GIPL. This limited recourse to GIPL comes in the form of Corporate Guarantees 
and/or Comfort Letter provided to cover:

		  •	 the difference between outstanding loans and the termination payments receivable by the SPV from clients (in case of 
termination of the project due to concessionaire’s event of default and/or force majeure events).

		  •	 the shortfall in payment of annuity due to non-availability of road to traffic, for annuity projects.

		  •	 increase in O & M expenses beyond those covered in the Financing Documents, for annuity projects.

		  •	 increase in tax payments beyond those covered in the Financing Documents, for annuity projects of REL and AEL.

	 AEL AND REL:

	 Term Loans availed from Banks are:

	 Secured by Legal Mortgage in English Form over immovable properties, both present & future.
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	 Secured by hypothecation/Charge over:

	 (a)	 AEL’s/REL’s other properties, present or future, both tangible and intangible, whether immovable or movable. 

	 (b)	 All the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of AEL/REL in, to, under and/in respect of project 
documents including all Guarantees and Bonds issued/to be issued in terms thereof including the Contractor Warranties, 
Liquidated damages, Performance Guarantees and Bonds. 

	 (c)	 All the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of AEL/REL, in, to, under and/in respect of insurance 
related to or in any manner connected with the Project, both present and future, and all rights, claims and benefits to all 
monies receivable thereunder and all other claims thereunder. 

	 (d)	 All the rights , title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of AEL/REL, in, to, under and/in respect of Project 
Accounts and all banks, all amount lying therein or to be credited therein, all proceeds, investment made out of the 
amounts received and/or lying in the accounts including all assets securities and records, documents and instruments which 
represents all amounts in the Accounts. 

	 (e)	 All amounts owing/payable/to and/or received by, AEL/REL and/or by any person on behalf of the AEL/REL including 
without limitation any payment from NHAI and/or any other person under the project documents or otherwise. 

	 (f)	 Floating Charges on all other assets of AEL/REL, both present and future, other than assets described above. 

	 (g)	 Pledge of 51% of equity shares of AEL/REL held by GIL and GIPL.

	 VSPL 

	 (a)	 Secured by first charge on the fixed assets and moveable assets of the company.

	 (b)	 Secured by hypothecation of moveable assets and receivables of the company.

	 PBPL

	 Vehicle loan is secured by hypothecation of car purchased under the scheme from ICICI Bank Ltd.

	 MNEL

	 The Senior Loan together with all upfront fee, interest, further interest, additional interest, liquidated damages, premium on 
prepayment, costs, expenses and other monies whatsoever stipulated in this Agreement (“Secured Obligations”) shall be secured 
by: 

	 (a)	 a first mortgage and charge on all the Borrower’s immovable properties, both present and future;

	 (b)	 a first charge by way of hypothecation of all the Borrower’s moveables, both present and future;

	 (c)	 a first charge on Borrower’s Receivables except bonus;

	 (d)	 a first charge over all bank accounts of the Borrower; 

	 (e)	 a first charge on all intangibles of the Borrower including but not limited to goodwill, rights, undertakings and uncalled 
capital, present and future;

	 (f)	 a first charge by way of assignment or otherwise creation of Security Interest in: 

	 	 (i)	 all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents, duly 
acknowledged and consented to by the relevant counter-parties to such Project Documents to the extent not expressly 
provided in each such Project Document, all as amended, varied or supplemented from time to time including all 
guarantees and bonds issued or to be issued in terms thereof;

	 	 (ii)	 the right, title and interest of the Borrower by way of first charge in, to and under all the Government Approvals;

	 	 (iii)	 all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guarantee 
including contractor guarantees and liquidated damages and performance bond provided by any party to the Project 
Documents;

	 	 (iv)	 all insurance contracts/insurance proceeds;

	 (g)	 Pledge of 51% of equity shares held by GIL and GIPL.

	 GICL AND KBICL

	 The Loan together with all, interest, additional interest, liquidated damages, premium on pre payment, costs, expenses and other 
monies whatsoever stipulated in this Agreement (“Secured Obligations”) shall be secured by:

	 (a)	 a first mortgage and charge on all the Borrower’s immovable properties, both present and future;

	 (b)	 a first charge by way of hypothecation of all the Borrower’s moveables, including current and non-current assets, moveable 
plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, both 
present and future other than the Project Assets;

	 (c)	 a first charge on Borrower’s Receivables;

	 (d)	 a first charge over all bank accounts of the Borrower including without limitation, the Escrow Account, the Retention 
Accounts (or any account in substitution thereof) and such Other Bank Accounts that may be opened in terms hereof and 
of the Project Documents and in all funds from time to time deposited therein and in all Authorised Investments or other 
securities representing all amounts credited thereto;

	 (e)	 a first charge on all intangibles of the Borrower including but not limited to goodwill, rights, undertakings and uncalled 
capital, present and future;
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	 (f)	 a first charge by way of assignment or otherwise creation of Security Interest in:

	 	 (i)	 all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents, duly 
acknowledged and consented to by the relevant counter-parties to such Project Documents to the extent not expressly 
provided in each such Project Document, all as amended, varied or supplemented from time to time;

	 	 (ii)	 the right, title and interest of the Borrower by way of first charge in, to and under all the Government Approvals;

	 	 (iii)	 all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guarantee 
including contractor guarantees and liquidated damages and performance bond provided by any party to the Project 
Documents;

	 	 (iv)	 insurance contracts/ insurance proceeds;

	 11.	 Pledge of Shares

	 	 The Company has pledged the following shares in favour of the lenders to the projects of its subsidiaries as part of the 
terms of financing agreements entered into by the respective subsidiaries.

Company Name No. of Equity shares pledged as at Rate (Rupees)

March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

AEL 9,135,010 3,697,560 10/-

REL 9,135,010 3,697,560 10/-

MNEL 16,120,000 16,120,000 10/-

GICL 9,593,233 — 10/-

KBICL 6,281,730 — 10/-

	 12.	 Contingent Liability

	 	 (a)	 Group’s share in Contingent Liability not provided for in the respect of Jointly Controlled Entities:

Particulars March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

VSPL:

Bank Guarantees 15,824,483 11,412,257

Disputed Liquidated Damages 8,444,453 8,444,453

Others 8,444,453 8,444,453

GIPL:

Guarantees 16,550,000 —

TOTAL 49,263,389 28,301,163

	 	 (b)	 Disputed liquidated damages pertain to amounts paid by the VSPL, under dispute to Visakhapatnam Port Trust (VPT). 
VSPL during the period ended December 31, 2004 received a claim from VPT for liquidated damages aggregating Rs. 
20 million, on account of a delay in completion of East Quay (EQ) 8. VSPL is disputing the liquidated damages claim 
and has paid the claim under protest. The amount paid has been included in ‘advances recoverable in cash or kind or 
for value to be received’ under ‘loans and advances’.

	 	 	 Discussions between VSPL and VPT are ongoing. The management of VSPL expects to resolve the dispute amicably 
and obtain a refund of the amount paid. Pending the outcome of the dispute, significant uncertainties exists vis-à-vis 
the ultimate refund of the amounts paid under protest. Hence the management has not considered a provision for the 
amounts paid and included under advances recoverable in these financial statements.

	 	 (c)	 Contingent Liability includes an amount of Rs. 177,699,900 claimed by the Collector and District Registrar, Rajahmundry, 
pursuant to and Order dated March 15, 2005, as deficit stamp duty payable on the Concession Agreement entered into 
between REL and National Highway Authority of India (‘NHAI’), classifying the Concession Agreement as a ‘lease’ under 
Article 31(d) of the Indian Stamp Act. REL has impugned the Order by way of a writ petition before the High Court of 
Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad. No provision is considered necessary in respect of the said demand, as the management 
believes that there is no contravention of the Indian Stamp Act.

	 	 (d)	 Disputed tax liabilities, in appeal in the case of AEL, is Rs. 32,283,712. Of this, an amount of Rs. 22,788,078 has been 
deposited by AEL.

	 13.	 Commitments

		  Capital commitments

	 	 The total capital commitment as on March 31, 2008 is Rs. 20,902,200,000. Total capital commitment as on March 31, 2007 
was Rs. 10,425,877,416. The capital commitments are in respect of projects where the concession agreements have been 
signed and does not include projects where only Letters of Intents are held.

Export obligations

Particulars March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

VSPL:

Under EPCG Scheme — 72,028,191
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	 14.	 Segment reporting

	 	 The Company’s operations’ constitutes a single business and geographical segment of “Infrastructure Development “as per 
AS 17.

	 15.	 Employees Stock Options Scheme (‘ESOP’)

	 	 The Company has instituted an ESOP Scheme during the year which was approved by the shareholders vide their resolution 
dated May 4, 2007. The Board of Directors of the Company has granted 1,640,000 stock options to its employees pursuant 
to the ESOP Scheme on July 1, 2007 and October 1, 2007. Each options entitles an employee to subscribe to 1 equity share 
of the Company at an exercise price of Rs. 80 per share. 

	 	 The following options vest in a graded manner over a period of three to four years and are exercisable for a period of 
2 years from vesting as described below. 

		  Options granted on July 1, 2007

Vesting Date No. of Options Exercise Period Intrinsic Value (Rs.) Fair Value (Rs.)

(1) (2) (3) (5) (4)

July 1, 2008 352,250 01.07.08 to 30.06.10 19.00 41.54

July 1, 2009 421,750 01.07.09 to 30.06.11 19.00 48.68

July 1, 2010 410,250 01.07.10 to 30.06.12 19.00 54.59

July 1, 2011 430,750 01.07.11 to 30.06.13 19.00 59.62

1,615,000

		  Options granted on October 1, 2007	

Vesting Date No. of Options Exercise Period Intrinsic Value (Rs.) Fair Value (Rs.)
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)
July 1, 2009 5,000 01.07.09 to 30.06.11 44.00 67.12
July 1, 2010 10,000 01.07.10 to 30.06.12 44.00 73.58
July 1, 2011 10,000 01.07.11 to 30.06.13 44.00 79.24

25,000

	 	 The Company was an unlisted company at the date of grant and the intrinsic value was determined on the basis of an 
independent valuation by following the price to Net Asset Value (NAV) method. The intrinsic value and the fair value as 
determined by the independent valuer are given in the above table.

	 	 Under this method, compensation expense equals the intrinsic value of the option which is recorded is amortised over the 
vesting period of the option. The intrinsic value is the excess of the value of the underlying stock as determined by the 
independent valuer over the exercise price at the measurement date, which typically is the grant date.

	 	 The fair value of 1,540,000 options granted on July 1, 2007 was determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model 
with the following assumptions:

(a) Risk free interest rate 7.49%

(b) Expected Dividend yield —

(c) Expected life of the option 2 to 5 years

(d) Expected Volatility of Share price 51%

	 	 Similarly, the fair value of 25,000 options granted on October 1, 2007 was determined using the Black-Scholes Option 
Pricing Model with the following assumptions:

(a) Risk free interest rate 7.77% (3 years maturity)

7.71% (4 years maturity)

7.81% (5 years maturity)

(b) Expected Dividend yield —

(c) Expected life of the option 2.75 to 4.75 years

(d) Expected Volatility of Share price 51%

	 	 The Company’s stock option activity for the period ended March 31, 2008 is presented below:

Particulars Shares arising 
from options

Weighted average 
exercise price

Outstanding at the beginning of the period — —

Granted 1,640,000 80

Exercised — —

Forfeited 75,000 80

Outstanding at the end of the period 1,565,000 80

	 	 There were 75,000 options which were forfeited during the period. Further, none of the 1,565,000 options granted are 
exercisable as at March 31, 2008.
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	 	 All the above options have an exercise price of Rs. 80 per share and have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 
3.55 years. 

	 	 Had compensation cost been determined in accordance with the fair value approach described in the Guidance Note, the 
Company’s net profit for the year ended March 31, 2008 as reported would have changed to amounts indicated below:

Particulars Rupees

Net Income as reported 186,495,610

Add: Stock based compensation expense included in the reported income 11,353,039

Less: Stock based compensation expenses determined using fair value of options 28,404,237

Net profit (adjusted) 169,444,412

Basic earnings per share as reported 1.45

Basic earnings per share (adjusted) 1.32

Diluted earnings per share as reported 1.45

Diluted earnings per share (adjusted) 1.31

	 16.	 Employee benefits

	 	 From the April 1, 2007, the revised AS-15 (Employee Benefits) is applicable to the group. The current year being the first 
year of adoption of AS-15 (Revised) by the Company, previous year information has not been furnished. 

	 	 The ICAI has issued a limited revision to AS-15 (revised) which allows an entity to make disclosures required by paragraph 
120(n) of AS 15 (revised) prospectively from the transition date and also provides an option to charge the additional defined 
benefit liability arising upon the first application of AS-15 (revised) as an expense over a period upto 5 years, instead 
of adjusting the entire increase in liability to opening reserves. The limited revision has not yet been incorporated in AS 
15 notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006. The Company expects that the limited revision will be 
incorporated in the notified standards shortly.

	 	 Accordingly, the Company has not provided the disclosures required by paragraph 120(n) in respect of its defined retirement 
benefits. The Company does not have any additional defined benefit liability arising upon the first application of AS 15 
(revised).

	 	 Gratuity

	 	 Gratuity is a defined benefit plan under which employees are entitled to receive gratuity calculated based on the number 
of years of their service and their last drawn salary at the time of retirement 

	 	 The following table summarises the components of net benefit expense recognized in the profit and loss account and 
amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2008

Net employee benefit expense (recognised in personnel costs)  
Current Service Cost 343,346 
Interest Cost 48,877 
Actuarial loss 836,451 
Total 1,228,674

	 	 The provision for gratuity at March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007 aggregates Rs. 1,307,921 and Rs. 447,909 respectively.

	 	 The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars Rupees

Defined benefit obligation, at March 31, 2007 523,478 

Current service Cost 343,346 

Interest Cost 48,877 

Actuarial loss 836,451 

Less: Benefit Paid 444,231 

Defined benefit obligation, at March 31, 2008 1,307,921 

	 	 The group’s gratuity obligation is fully unfunded. Hence currently, the Company does not expect to contribute any amounts 
to its gratuity plan in the next annual period. 

	 	 The principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity obligations are as follows:

Discount rate 8%

Expected rate of return on plan assets Not applicable

Expected rate of salary increase 5% to 7%

Attrition rate 2%

Retirement age 60 years

	 	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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	 17.	 Related party transactions

		  (a)	 Relationships:

			   Entity Where Control Exists: Holding Company of the Group:

	 	 	 Gammon India Limited 

			   Associates:

	 	 	 Eversun Sparkle Maritimes Services Pvt. Limited

	 	 	 Associated Transrail Structure Limited

	 	 	 ATSL Infrastructure Projects Limited

	 	 	 Modern Toll Roads Limited.

			   Key Management Personnel and Relatives:

	 	 	 Mr. Abhijit Rajan 

	 	 	 Mr. Parvez Umrigar

		  (b)	 Related Party Transactions:

	 	 	 (Please refer to Annexure 1 for Related party transactions)

	 18.	 Derivative Instruments and Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

	 	 There are no derivative instruments outstanding as at March 31, 2008. There is unhedged foreign currency exposure of 
US $ 212,027 (Rs. 8,485,359) of liability outstanding as at March 31, 2008 which is included in Sundry Creditors for share 
issue expenses under the Schedule for Current Liabilities.

	 19.	 Prior period comparatives

	 	 The previous period figures are however regrouped/reclassified to facilitate limited comparability.

As per our report of even date

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. For S. R. Batliboi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

N. Jayendran per Amit Majmudar Parvez Umrigar    Managing Director
Partner Partner
Membership No. : 40441 Membership No. : 36656 Himanshu Parikh Director

Place	 : Mumbai Sathis Chandran Company Secretary
Date	 : May 21, 2008    
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Transactions Holding 
Company  Associates  

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  Total 

Operations & Maintenance Income:

– Gammon India Ltd.  143,020,096 
 (143,416,064)

—  
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 143,020,096 
 (143,416,064)

Other Operating Income:

– Gammon India Ltd.  9,000,000 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 9,000,000 
 (—) 

Operations & Maintenance Expenses:

– Gammon India Ltd.  143,020,096 
 (136,126,874)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 143,020,096 
 (136,126,874)

Contract Expenditure:

– Gammon India Ltd.  3,528,382,718 
 (1,498,323,466)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 3,528,382,718 
 (1,498,323,466)

Advances given against EPC contracts:

– Gammon India Ltd.  926,810,460 
 (545,944,750)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 926,810,460 
 (545,944,750)

Advances recovered against EPC contracts:

– Gammon India Ltd.  391,385,820 
 (182,474,640)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 391,385,820 
 (182,474,640)

Advance received for purchase of  equity shares:

– Modern Tollroads Ltd. — 
 (—) 

 26,520,000 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 26,520,000 
 (—) 

Purchase of  Intangible Asset:

– Gammon India Ltd. — 
 (250,000,000)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (250,000,000)

Rent Paid:             

– Gammon India Ltd.  1,200,000 
 (1,200,000)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 1,200,000 
 (1,200,000)

Share Application Money paid:

– Modern Tollroads Ltd. — 
 (—) 

 12,994,800 
  (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 12,994,800 
 (—) 

– Gorakhpur Infrastructure Co. Ltd. — 
 (—) 

— 
 (400,000)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (400,000)

Purchase of  Investments:

– Gammon India Ltd.  10,245,900 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 10,245,900 
 (—) 

– Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. —
 (—) 

 1,004,500 
 (—)

— 
(—) 

 1,004,500 
 (—) 

Sale of  Investments:

– Modern Tollroads Ltd. — 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

Share Application Money Received:

– Gammon India Ltd.  210,676,670 
 (—) 

— 
  (—) 

— 
  (—) 

 210,676,670 
 (—) 

– Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. — 
 (—) 

 19,771,990 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 19,771,990 
 (—)

ANNEXURE-1
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Transactions Holding 
Company  Associates  

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  Total 

Refund received against Share Application Money
Paid/Conversion into equity:

– Gammon India Ltd.  211,307,579 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 211,307,579 
 (—) 

– Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. — 
 (—) 

 19,771,990 
 (—)

— 
  (—)

 19,771,990 
 (—)

Insurance Claims received:

– Gammon India Ltd.  3,941,595 
 (2,987,142)

— 
 (—)

— 
 (—)

 3,941,595 
 (2,987,142)

Insurance Claims paid:

– Gammon India Ltd.  3,941,595 
 (2,987,142)

— 
 (—)

— 
 (—)

 3,941,595 
 (2,987,142)

Managerial Remuneration:             
– Mr. Parvez Umrigar — 

 (—) 
— 

  (—) 
 8,406,284 

 (3,845,659)
 8,406,284 

 (3,845,659)

Gross value of  stock options issued to: 

– Mr. Parvez Umrigar — 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 11,400,000 
 (—) 

 11,400,000 
 (—) 

Amortization of  options issued to:

– Mr. Parvez Umrigar — 
 (—) 

— 
  (—) 

 4,845,000 
 (—) 

 4,845,000 
 (—) 

Finance provided (including Loans and Equity
contribution in cash or in kind):

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

–  Modern Toll Road — 
 (—) 

 244,700 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 244,700 
 (—) 

–  ATSL Infrastructure Projects Ltd. — 
 (—) 

 244,500 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 244,500 
 (—) 

–  Associated Transrail Structures Ltd.
 

— 
 (—) 

 665,000,000 
 (382,500,000)

— 
 (—) 

 665,000,000 
 (382,500,000)

Finance provided for expenses and on account
payments:

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

– Gammon India Ltd.  3,750,812 
 (828,249)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 3,750,812 
 (828,249)

–  Modern Toll Road — 
 (—) 

 47,771 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 47,771 
 (—) 

–  ATSL Infrastructure Projects Ltd. — 
 (—) 

 19,585 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 19,585 
 (—) 

Amount liquidated towards the above finance:             
– Gammon India Ltd.
 

 2,209,548 
 (9,750)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 2,209,548 
 (9,750)

–  Associated Transrail Structures Ltd.
 

— 
 (—) 

 595,000,000 
 (212,500,000)

— 
 (—) 

 595,000,000 
 (212,500,000)

Interest income during the period:             
–  Associated Transrail Structures Ltd.
 

— 
 (—) 

 22,647,350 
 (4,476,988)

— 
 (—) 

 22,647,350 
 (4,476,988)

Finance received (including Loans and Equity
contribution in cash or in kind):

– Gammon India Ltd.  561,546,590 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 561,546,590 
 (—) 

–  Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. — 
 (—) 

 19,771,990 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 19,771,990 
 (—) 

ANNEXURE-1
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Transactions Holding 
Company  Associates  

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  Total 

Finance received for expenses & on account payments:

– Gammon India Ltd.  53,250,710 
 (43,602,113)

— 
  (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 53,250,710 
 (43,602,113)

–  Associated Transrail Structures Ltd.
 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (173,394)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (173,394)

Amount liquidated towards the above finance:

– Gammon India Ltd.  179,374,676 
 (61,630,683)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 179,374,676 
 (61,630,683)

–  Associated Transrail Structures Ltd.
 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (173,394)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (173,394)

Interest paid during the period:

– Gammon India Ltd.  9,141,163 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 9,141,163 
 (—) 

Deposit towards purchase of  Beneficial Interest of
equity shares:

– Gammon India Ltd.  243,991,370 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 243,991,370 
 (—) 

Purchase of  Beneficial Interest of  equity shares:

– Mr. Abhijit Rajan — 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

– Parvez Umrigar — 
 (—) 

— 
  (—) 

— 
 (20)

— 
 (20)

Guarantee & Collaterals O/s:

– Gammon India Ltd.  16,550,000 
 (—) 

— 
  (—)  

— 
  (—)  

 16,550,000 
 (—) 

Retention Money recovered:

– Gammon India Ltd.  205,111,903 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 205,111,903 
 (—) 

Retention Money refunded:  

– Gammon India Ltd.  175,102,620 
 (—) 

— 
  (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 175,102,620 
 (—) 

Refund received of  Margin Money Deposit kept:

– Gammon India Ltd. — 
 (9,438,488)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (9,438,488)

Outstanding Balances Receivable:

– Gammon India Ltd.  605,272,826 
 (360,595,173)

— 
 (—) 

— 
 (—) 

 605,272,826 
 (360,595,173)

–  Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. —  150,139,849 —  150,139,849 

(—) (170,000,000) (—) (170,000,000)

–  ATSL Infrastructure Projects Ltd.  —  36,785  36,785 
 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

–  Modern Toll Road
 

— 
 (—)  

 48,271 
 (—) 

— 
  (—) 

 48,271 
 (—) 

(Previous period’s figures are shown in brackets)

ANNEXURE-1
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
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Auditors’ Report

To
The members of 
Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited as at March 31, 
2008 and the related Profit and loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that 
date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose 
in the Annexure a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

(i)	 We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

(ii)	 In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the company so far as 
it appears from our examination of the books. 

(iii)	The Balance Sheet, Profit and loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are 
in agreement with the books of accounts.

(iv)	In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and loss Account and the Cash Flow statement dealt with by 
this report comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

(v)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2008 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Clause (g) of Sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 
1956.

(vi)	In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
accounts and the other notes thereon give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the 
manner so require and give a true and fair view.

	 (a)	 in the case of Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2008 and;

	 (b)	 in the case of Profit and loss Account of the profit for the year ended on that date;

	 (c)	 in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co.	 For S. R. Batliboi & Associates
Chartered Accountants	 Chartered Accountants

N. Jayendran	 Amit Majmudar
(Partner)		  (Partner)
M. No. 40441	 M. No. 36656

Mumbai, Dated : May 21, 2008	 Mumbai, Dated : May 21, 2008
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in our report of even date)

(i)	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets;

	 (b)	 The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

	 (c)	 There was no substantial disposal of fixed assets during the year.

(ii)	 (a)	 The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during 
the year. 

	 (b)	 The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable 
and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

	 (c)	 The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and as per the report of the site 
auditors provided to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(iii)	 (a)	 The Company has taken a loan from a party covered in the Register maintained under Section 
301 of the Companies Act 1956. The maximum balance outstanding during the year and the 
balance of the loan outstanding at year end is Rs. 29,30,00,000/- . In our opinion and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, the rate of interest and terms and conditions 
of the loans are not prima facie prejudicial to the interests of the company.

	 (b)	 The loan taken is re-payable on demand. As informed, the lender has not demanded repayment 
during the year, thus, there has been no default on the part of the Company. The payment of 
interest has been regular

	 (c)	 The Company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other 
parties covered in the Register maintained under section 301 of The Companies Act, 1956. 

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, 
for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the rendering of services. During the course 
of our audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the internal control system in respect of these 
areas.

(v)	 (a) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions 
that need to be entered into a register in pursuance of section 301 of the Act have been so 
entered.

	 (b)	 In respect of transactions made in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements entered into 
during the financial year and exceeding the value of Rupees five lakhs, because of the unique 
and specialized nature of the items involved and in the absence of any comparable prices, we 
are unable to comment whether the transactions were made at prevailing market prices at the 
relevant time. 

(vi)	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year under review, and 
consequently the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 58A 
and 58AA of the Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable. 

(vii)	 The Company has an internal audit system, the scope and coverage of which, in our opinion requires 
to be enlarged to be commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(viii)	 To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed 
maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 209 of the Companies 
Act, 1956.

	 (a)	 The Company is generally regular in depositing Provident Fund, Income tax and service tax 
dues with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. The 
provisions of the investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, 
customs duty and excise duty are not applicable to the Company. 
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	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no arrears of outstanding 
statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable except in one case of tax deducted at source amounting to 
Rs. 45,68,055 which was since paid after the balance sheet date.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues of income tax, 
sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess which have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute.

(x)	 The Company does not have any accumulated losses at March 31, 2008 and has not incurred cash 
losses in current year and the previous year.

(xi)	 The Company does not have any borrowings from banks and Financial institutions and therefore 
clause (xi) of para 4 of the Order is not applicable.

(xii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records 
produced to us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way 
of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiii)	 The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society and accordingly clause (xiii) 
of para 4 of the Order is not applicable.

(xiv)	 The Company has maintained proper records of securities and other investments, held as investments 
and the said investments are in the name of the company except as detailed in Note No. C (a) to C 
(c) of the notes to the financial statements.

(xv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not given guarantee for 
loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

(xvi)	 The Company has not taken any term loans and therefore clause (xvi) of para 4 of the Order is not 
applicable.

(xvii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on an over all examination of the 
Balance Sheet of the Company and the necessary representations from the management, we report 
that the Company has applied short term funds being the borrowings from the holding company 
amounting to Rs. 29.30 crores which is repayable on demand towards long term purposes. The Company 
has made a public issue the proceeds of which we are informed by the management would be used 
to repay the borrowing from the holding company.

(xviii)	 The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year to parties covered 
in the Register maintained under section 301 of the Act and therefore clause (xviii) of the said Order 
is not applicable.

(xix)	 The Company has not issued any debentures and accordingly clause (xix) of the said Order is not 
applicable.

(xx)	 The Company has during the year raised money by way of an initial public offering during the year. 
The amounts collected by the Company are held in an escrow account at March 31, 2008 and 
disclosed in the financial statements.

(xxi)	 Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management we report that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during 
the year.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co.	 For S. R. Batliboi & Associates
Chartered Accountants	 Chartered Accountants

N. Jayendran	 Amit Majmudar
(Partner)		  (Partner)
M. No. 40441	 M. No. 36656

Mumbai, Dated : May 21, 2008	 Mumbai, Dated : May 21, 2008
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Schedule 
No.

 As At 
March 31, 2008

 As At 
March 31, 2007

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Fund

Share Capital 1  1,420,745,077  1,280,000,000 

Employee Stock Options outstanding 2  11,353,039 —

Reserves and Surplus 3  3,275,534,433  1,139,992,133 

  4,707,632,549   2,419,992,133 

  

Unsecured Loans 4   293,000,000 —

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)   24,246,537   15,056,479 

[refer note C (4) of schedule 19]

TOTAL  5,024,879,086  2,435,048,612 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets (Net) 5   

Gross Block  261,313,613  260,148,131 

�Accumulated Depreciation and Amortisation  38,107,680  18,875,018 

Net Block  223,205,933  241,273,113 

Investments 6   2,461,693,323   1,719,817,661 

Current Assets, Loans and Advances   

Inventories 7  1,361,366  2,750,225 

Sundry Debtors 8  37,682,999  47,222,641 

Cash and Bank Balances 9  2,416,372,221   291,144,373  

Loans and Advances 10  67,497,024  209,014,814 

 (A)  2,522,913,610  550,132,053 

Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions   

Current Liabilities 11  173,283,360  40,520,871 

Provisions 12  9,650,420  35,653,344 

 (B)  182,933,780  76,174,215 

Net Current Assets	 (A-B)   2,339,979,830   473,957,838 

TOTAL  5,024,879,086  2,435,048,612 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 19   

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. For S. R. Batliboi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

Abhijit Rajan Chairman & Managing Director

Parvez Umrigar Managing Director

N. Jayendran Per Amit Majmudar Himanshu Parikh

}Partner Partner C. C. Dayal
Directors

Membership No: 40441 Membership No: 36656 Naresh Chandra

Mumbai S. C. Tripathi

Date: May 21, 2008 Sathis Chandran Company Secretary
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Schedule 
No.

Year Ended
March 31, 2008

Year Ended
March 31, 2007

INCOME

Turnover 13  266,976,780   193,159,472  

Other Income 14  8,191,855   43,935,467  

 275,168,635  237,094,939 

EXPENDITURE

Operating & Maintenance Expenses 15  43,073,629   28,034,411  

Establishment Expenses 16  31,490,205   21,088,540  

Personnel Cost 17  53,425,937  23,221,707 

Finance Costs 18  9,739,731   278,243  

Depreciation and Amortisation 5  19,277,460   18,815,619  

  157,006,962   91,438,520 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  118,161,673  145,656,419 

Less:	 Provision for Taxation   

		  Current Tax  38,100,000  35,500,000 

		  Deferred Tax  9,190,058  14,990,080 

		  Fringe Benefit Tax  600,000  340,105 

 47,890,058  50,830,185 

PROFIT AFTER TAX   70,271,615   94,826,234 

Less:	� Short Provision for Tax of earlier 
years  520,726  25,943,942 

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR   69,750,889   68,882,292 

Add:	 Balance beginning of the year   142,210,910   73,328,618 

BALANCE CARRIED TO THE BALANCE SHEET   211,961,799   142,210,910 

�Earnings Per Share  
[refer note no. C (5) of Schedule 19]

Basic  0.54  0.54 

Diluted  0.54  0.54 

�Weigthed Average No. of Equity Shares 
Outstanding  128,192,801  128,000,000 

�Weighted Average of Potential Dilutive 
equity shares  128,497,228 —

�Nominal Value of Equity Shares in Rupees  10  10 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 19

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. For S. R. Batliboi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

Abhijit Rajan Chairman & Managing Director

Parvez Umrigar Managing Director

N. Jayendran Per Amit Majmudar Himanshu Parikh

}Partner Partner C. C. Dayal
Directors

Membership No: 40441 Membership No: 36656 Naresh Chandra

Mumbai S. C. Tripathi

Date: May 21, 2008 Sathis Chandran Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Year Ended 
March 31, 2008

Year Ended 
March 31, 2007

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit before Tax and extraordinary items  118,161,673  145,656,419 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Ammortisation  19,277,460  18,815,619 
Dividend Income  (729,807)  (1,133,082)
Interest (Net)  5,620,710  (39,537,000)
Employee Stock Options  11,353,039  — 
Provision dues from joint ventures  —  938,441 
Assets Scrapped  108,483  — 
Advances paid to staff written off  4,192  — 

 35,634,077  (20,916,022)

Operating Profit before Working Capital 
Changes

 153,795,750  124,740,397 

Adjustments for:
Trade and Other Receivables  (14,371,209)  (5,135,071)
Inventories  1,388,859  (2,750,225)
Trade Payables & Working Capital Finance  (19,036,560)   (8,887,335)  

 (32,018,910)  (16,772,631)

Cash Generated from the Operations  121,776,840  107,967,766 
Direct Taxes paid  (67,825,009)  (26,767,391)

Net Cash from Operating Activities  53,951,831  81,200,375 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (1,318,763)   (257,134,695)  
Investments
Subscription to:   
Gorakhpur Infrastructure Company Limited  (247,861,330)  (195,000)
Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited  (173,395,590)  (245,000)
Mumbai Nasik Expressway Limited  —  (415,600,000)
Gammon Logistics Limited  (499,400)  — 
Punjab Biomass Power Limited  (2,000,000)  (30,500,060)
Haryana Biomass Power Limited  (499,940)  — 
Marine Project Services Limited  (499,400)  — 
Tidong Hydro Power Limited  (499,940)  — 
ATSL Infrastructure Projects Limited  (244,500)  — 
Indira Container Terminal Pvt Limited  (78,628,320)  — 
Modern Tollroads Limited  (244,700)  — 
SEZ Adityapur Limited  —  (190,000)
Eversun Sparkle Maritime Services Limited  —  (10,719,750)
Purchase consideration comprising entirely cash 
and cash equivalents) for the acquisition of 
following subsidiaries:
Gorakhpur Infrastructure Company Limited  (6,127,450)  — 
Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited  (5,122,950)  — 
Gammon Projects Developers Limited  —  (700)
Purchase of Other Investments:
Mutual Fund Units  (10,000,000)  (50,514,348)
Sale of Investments:
Mutual Fund Units  20,514,348   40,000,000 
Intercorporate Deposits:
Granted  (70,005,000)  (303,970,000)
Refunds received  240,005,000  130,078,000 
Advances to Subsidiaries  5,207,115  1,187,672 
Advances to Other Companies  (12,010,058)  (1,852,100)
Deposit for acquistion of controlling interest in 
GICL and KBICL  (158,810,690)  — 
Share Application Money Pending Allotment  (77,955,800)  398,151,750 
Advances received for sale of shares  26,520,000 —
Interest received  5,747,845   30,307,086  
Dividend received  729,807  1,133,082 

Net Cash (used for) Investing Activities  (546,999,716)  (470,064,063)
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Year Ended 
March 31, 2008

Year Ended 
March 31, 2007

   
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from Initial Public Offer of equity 
shares  2,377,673,203  — 
Proceeds from borrowings  293,000,000  — 
Interest Paid  (9,141,163)   (278,243)  
Share Issue Expenses  (43,256,307)  (2,462,984)

Net Cash from/(used for) Financing Activities  2,618,275,733  (2,741,227)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS  2,125,227,848  (391,604,915)

Closing Balances  2,416,372,221  291,144,373 
Opening Balances   291,144,373   682,749,288 
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS  2,125,227,848  (391,604,915)
Note: Figures in brackets denote outflows.  
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cheques on hand  161,456  15,577 
With Banks:
On Current Account  38,537,562  20,824,812 
On Escrow Account – IPO Proceeds  2,377,673,203  — 
On Deposit Account  —  270,303,984 

 2,416,372,221  291,144,373 

As per our report of even date.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. For S. R. Batliboi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

Abhijit Rajan Chairman & Managing Director

Parvez Umrigar Managing Director

N. Jayendran Per Amit Majmudar Himanshu Parikh

}Partner Partner C. C. Dayal
Directors

Membership No: 40441 Membership No: 36656 Naresh Chandra

Mumbai S. C. Tripathi

Date: May 21, 2008 Sathis Chandran Company Secretary
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SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

Schedule ‘1’: Share Capital

Authorised:

200,000,000 (Previous year: 200,000,000) Equity 
shares of Rs. 10/- each  2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 

 2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 

Issued and Subscribed:

144,550,000 (Previous Year: 128,000,000) Equity 
Shares of Rs. 10/- each  1,445,500,000  1,280,000,000 

[Out of the above 105,600,000 (Previous Year: 
105,600,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully 
paid held by Gammon India Limited – the holding 
Company and 4,480,000 (Previous year Nil) equity 
shares of Rs. 10/- each are held by Gammon Cooling 
Towers Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Gammon 
India Limited]

Less: Amount receivable on allotment of equity 
shares [refer Note C(3) of Schedule 19]  24,754,923 —

 1,420,745,077  1,280,000,000 

The Company has issued employee stock options to 
employees during the year ended March 31, 2008 
[refer Note C(17) of Schedule 19]. At March 31, 2008 
1,565,000 options (March 31, 2007: Nil) are issued 
and outstanding.

 1,420,745,077  1,280,000,000 

Schedule ‘2’:�	 Employee Stock Options 
Outstanding

Employee stock option outstanding  30,360,000 —

Less: Deferred Employee compensation outstanding  19,006,961 —

For details of Stock Options Outstanding 
[Refer Note C(17) of Schedule 19]

 11,353,039 —

Schedule ‘3’: Reserves and Surplus  

Security Premium, beginning of the year  997,781,223  1,000,244,207 

Add: Security Premium on equity shares through the 
Initial Public Offer  2,598,350,000 —

Less: Amount receivable on allotment of equity shares 
[Refer Note C(3) of Schedule 19]  361,421,874 —

 2,236,928,126 —

Less: Share issue expenses (relating to prior period)  10,816,209 —

Less: Share issue expenses during the year  160,320,506  2,462,984  

   2,065,791,411  (2,462,984)

Security premium, end of the year  3,063,572,634  997,781,223 

Profit & Loss Account balance  211,961,799  142,210,910 

  3,275,534,433  1,139,992,133 
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As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

Schedule ‘4’: Unsecured Loans

Intercorporate Loan received from Holding Company 
(repayable on demand)  293,000,000 —

 293,000,000 —

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Schedule ‘5’: 

PARTICULARS 

GROSS BLOCK ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION NET BLOCK

As on
01.4.2007

Additions
during the

year

Deletions
during the 

year

As on
31.03.2008

Upto
31.03.2007

For the 
year

Deletions 
for the

year

Upto
31.03.2008

As on
31.03.2008

As on
31.03.2007

TANGIBLE ASSETS:

Office Equipments  824,561  270,795  75,675  1,019,681  55,049  52,557  19,388  88,218  931,463  769,512 

Furniture & Fixtures  4,383,151  71,186  77,606  4,376,731  206,400  278,985  25,410  459,975  3,916,756  4,176,751 

Computers  1,191,873  432,740 —  1,624,613  142,521  244,221 —  386,742  1,237,871  1,049,352 

Motor Cars  3,748,546  544,042 —  4,292,588  188,139  368,698 —  556,837  3,735,751  3,560,407 

TOTAL  10,148,131  1,318,763  153,281  11,313,613  592,109  944,461  44,798  1,491,772  9,821,841  9,556,022 

INTANGIBLE ASSET:

Purchase of O&M Rights  250,000,000 — —  250,000,000  18,282,909  18,332,999 —  36,615,908  213,384,092  231,717,091 

 250,000,000 — —  250,000,000  18,282,909  18,332,999 —  36,615,908  213,384,092  231,717,091 

GRAND TOTAL  260,148,131  1,318,763  153,281  261,313,613  18,875,018  19,277,460  44,798  38,107,680  223,205,933  241,273,113 

Previous year  3,013,436  257,134,695 –  260,148,131  59,399  18,815,619 —  18,875,018  241,273,113 

As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

Schedule ‘6’ : Investments  
Long term Investments unless otherwise stated:

Trade Investments, in Subsidiary Companies:

(Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated) 

Ordinary Shares: (Unquoted) of Rs. 10/- each

14,210,000 (Previous Year: 14,210,000) Andhra 
Expressway Limited  177,032,800  177,032,800  

6,250,070 (Previous Year: 6,250,070) Cochin Bridge 
Infrastructure Company Limited  62,500,700  62,500,700 

50,000 (Previous Year: 50,000) Gammon Projects 
Developers Limited  500,000  500,000 

25,418,378 (Previous year: 19,500) Gorakhpur 
Infrastructure Company Limited*  254,183,780  195,000 

17,876,354 (Previous year: 24,500) Kosi Bridge 
Infrastructure Company Limited*  178,763,540  245,000 

41,595,000 (Previous year: 41,595,000) Mumbai Nasik 
Expressway Limited  415,950,000  415,950,000 

14,210,000 (Previous Year: 14,210,000) Rajahmundry 
Expressway Limited  178,175,200  178,175,200  

50,000 (Previous Year: 50,000) Sikkim Hydro Power 
Ventures Limited  500,000  500,000  

49,940 (Previous Year: Nil) Gammon Logistics Limited 
(formerly Gammon Road Developers Ltd.)  499,400  — 

Carried Forward  1,268,105,420  835,098,700 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
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As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

Brought Forward  1,268,105,420  835,098,700 

Schedule ‘6’ : Investments (Contd.) 
Trade Investments in Subsidiary Companies (Contd.)

49,940 (Previous Year: Nil) Marine Project Services 
Limited  499,400  — 

49,994 (Previous Year: Nil) Tidong Hydro Power 
Limited  499,940  — 

49,994 (Previous Year: Nil) Haryana Biomass Power 
Limited  499,940  — 

  1,269,604,700   835,098,700 

Acquisition of Controlling Interest in Equity Shares 
from Gammon India Limited, of [Refer Note No. C(1) 
(a) and (b) of Schedule 19]

Rajahmundry Expressway Limited  163,618,800  163,618,800 

Andhra Expressway Limited  164,761,200  164,761,200 

Gorakhpur Infrastructure Company Limited  95,969,230  — 

Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited  62,841,460  — 

 487,190,690  328,380,000 

Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities/Associates:

(Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated) 

Ordinary Shares: (Unquoted) of Rs. 10/- each, unless 
otherwise stated

33,436,347 (Previous Year: 33,436,347) Vizag Seaport 
Private Limited  334,831,837  334,831,837 

2,750,000 (Previous Year: 750,000) Punjab Biomass 
Power Limited of Re. 1/- each  32,750,000  30,750,000 

2,143,950 (Previous year: 2,143,950) Eversun Sparkle 
Maritimes Services Pvt. Limited  21,439,500  21,439,500 

19,000 (Previous year: 19,000) SEZ Adityapur Limited  190,000  190,000 

5,000 (Previous Year: 5,000) Gammon L & T 
Infrastructure MRTS Limited of Rs. 100/- each  500,000  500,000 

7,862,832 (Previous Year: Nil) Indira Container 
Terminal Pvt. Limited  78,628,320  — 

24,470 (Previous Year: Nil) Modern Tollroads Limited  244,700  — 

24,450 (Previous Year: Nil) ATSL Infrastructure Projects 
Limited  244,500  — 

  468,828,857  387,711,337 

Non-Trade-Quoted Investments, in fully paid-up 
Equity Shares of of Rs. 10/- each, unless otherwise 
stated (Current Investments) 

76,800 (Previous year: 76,800) Canara Bank Limited  2,688,000  2,688,000 

3,200 (Previous Year: 3,200) Vijaya Bank Limited  76,800  76,800 

10,530 (Previous Year: 10,530) Allahabad Bank 
Limited

 863,460  863,460 

52,024 (Previous Year: 52,024) Infrastructure 
Development Finance Co. Limited

 1,768,816  1,768,816 

1,160 (Previous Year: 1,160) Tata Consultancy Services 
Limited (Re. 1 per share paid up)

 493,000  493,000 

 5,890,076  5,890,076 

Carried Forward  2,231,514,323  1,557,080,113 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
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As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

Brought Forward  2,231,514,323  1,557,080,113 

Schedule ‘6’ : Investments (Contd.) 
Investment in Mutual Fund Units (Current 
Investments)

Canbank Mutual Fund (1,047,141 Units @ Rs. 10.04 
per Unit)  —  10,514,348 

Share application money pending allotment 
(Current Investments)  230,179,000  152,223,200 

  2,461,693,323   1,719,817,661 

Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments  1,738,433,557  1,233,324,385 

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments  5,890,076  5,890,076 

Aggregate Book Value of Other Investments  717,369,690  480,603,200 

Market Value of Quoted Investments  27,047,531  27,640,917 

Repurchase price of Mutual Fund Units   —   10,514,348 

*	At March 31, 2007 these Companies were associates 
of the Company

Schedule ‘7’: Inventories

Stores and Materials at site  1,040,966  2,750,225 

Goods in Transit  320,400  — 

  1,361,366  2,750,225 

Schedule ‘8’: Sundry Debtors 
[refer note C (2) of Schedule 19]

(Unsecured - Considered Good)

Outstanding for more than six months  —  196,300 

Other Debts   37,682,999   47,026,341 

  37,682,999  47,222,641 

Schedule ‘9’: Cash and Bank Balances

Cash on Hand  161,456  15,577 

Balances with Scheduled Banks:

in Current Accounts  38,537,562  20,824,812 

in Fixed Deposits With Banks  —  270,303,984 

in Escrow Bank Accounts - IPO Proceeds  2,377,673,203  — 

  2,416,372,221  291,144,373 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Gammon Infra Acct.indd   85 8/16/2008   4:51:22 PM



Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

86

As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

Schedule ‘10’: Loans and Advances
(Unsecured - Considered Good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to 
be received

 25,222,304  2,143,766 

Interest Accrued Receivable  2,503,359  5,457,089 
Dues from Subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associate 
Companies:

   

Andhra Expressway Limited  —  23,000 
ATSL Infrastructure Projects Limited  36,785  17,200 
Gammon L & T Infrastructure MRTS Limited  945,441  938,441 
Gammon Project Developers Limited  —  29,600 
Gammon Logistics Limited  337,080  — 
Gorakhpur Infrastructure Projects Limited  —  3,198,767 
Haryana Biomass Power Limited  6,261,447  6,200,000 
Indira Container Terminal Pvt Limited  2,725,779  923,248 
Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited  —  2,690,772 
Marine Project Services Limited  —  17,200 
Modern Tollroads Limited  48,271  500 
Mumbai Nasik Expressway Limited  5,303  396,827 
Punjab Biomass Power Limited  7,410  140,542 
Rajahmundry Expressway Limited  —  2,000 
Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Limited  —  959,454 

 10,367,516  15,537,551 
Service Tax Credit Receivable  —  6,663,297 
Intercorporate Deposits:  
Subsidiary Companies:
Gammon Projects Developers Limited  5,000  100,005,000 
Associate Companies:
Associated Transrail Structures Limited  —  70,000,000 
Others  3,892,000  3,892,000 

 3,897,000  173,897,000 
Other Deposits  17,111,500  349,900 
Prepaid Expenses  9,333,786  5,904,652 

  68,435,465  209,953,255 
Less: Provision made for Dues receivable from 
subsidiaries   938,441  938,441 

  67,497,024  209,014,814 

Schedule ‘11’: Current Liabilities
Dues to Holding Company, Gammon India Limited  19,118  23,911,762 
Dues to Subsidiaries/Joint Venture  850,946  200,940 
Sundry Creditors for expenses  1,402,223  1,059,892 
Sundry Creditors for Share Issue Expenses  127,880,408  — 
Advance received from Modern Tollroads Limited for 
purchase of equity shares  26,520,000  — 
Other Liabilities  16,610,665  15,348,277 

  173,283,360  40,520,871 

Schedule ‘12’: Provisions
Provision for Taxation:
Current Taxation  115,119,502  78,207,169 
Fringe Benefit Tax  1,059,327  459,327 

 116,178,829   78,666,496  
Less: Prepaid Taxes  109,958,744  43,842,128 

 6,220,085  34,824,368 
Provision for Staff Benefits against:
Provident Fund  187,831  46,367 
Leave Encashment  2,082,315  334,700 
Gratuity  1,160,189   447,909 

 3,430,335  828,976 
  9,650,420  35,653,344 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Year Ended 
March 31, 2008

Year Ended 
March 31, 2007

Schedule ‘13’ : Turnover
Income from Professional services rendered:

Developer’s Fees  114,956,684  49,743,408 

	 (Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 13,844,408; Previous 
year: Rs. 3,132,176)

  

Operating & Maintenance Income  143,020,096  143,416,064 

	 (Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 1,620,418; Previous 
year: Rs. 1,609,128)

Other Operating Income  9,000,000  — 

	 (Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 101,970; Previous year: 
Rs. Nil)

  266,976,780   193,159,472 

Schedule ‘14’ : Other Income
Dividend Income (comprises entirely dividend from 
short-term, non-trade investments)  729,807  1,133,082 
Interest Income:     

On Intercorporate Deposits placed  2,505,118  7,951,465 

(Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 566,618; Previous year: 
Rs. 1,779,817)
On Fixed Deposits with Banks  1,003,676  31,863,778 

(Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 159,720; Previous year: 
Rs. 7,150,232)
Others  11,659  — 

 3,520,453  39,815,243 

Other Income:

Insurance claims received  3,941,595  2,987,142 

 3,941,595  2,987,142 

 8,191,855  43,935,467 

Schedule ‘15’ :	Operating and Maintenance 
Expenses

Opening Stock of Materials  2,750,225  — 

Administration Expenses  2,871,549   2,679,334  

Electricity Charges  11,112,776   9,740,060  

Fuel Charges  2,159,116   1,991,072  

Hire Charges  277,503   416,611  

Maintenance Charges  15,492,410   11,608,887  

Insurance Charges  7,102,916  2,464,511 

Motor Car and Conveyance Expenses  968,402   705,369  

VAT Paid  82,415  59,484 

Security Charges  1,297,283   1,119,308  

  41,364,370  30,784,636 

 
Less: Closing Stock of Materials   1,040,966  2,750,225 

 43,073,629   28,034,411 
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Year Ended 
March 31, 2008

Year Ended 
March 31, 2007

Schedule ‘16’: Establishment Expenses

Conveyance Expenses  493,529  261,810 

Advertisement Expenses  —  524,762 

Bank Charges  139,942  92,148 

Books & Periodicals  116,771  105,831 

Membership & Subscription  110,500  88,450 

Insurance Charges  203,380  92,585 

Repairs & Maintenance  310,007  310,723 

Motor Car Expenses  1,221,665  732,879 

Printing & Stationery  871,809  546,682 

Professional Charges  13,552,244  9,665,697 

Rent  1,200,000  1,200,000 

Telephone Expenses  654,240  432,811 

Tender Document Expenses  2,094,327  1,154,478 

Travelling Expenses  7,414,309  3,501,550 

Directors’ Sitting Fees  150,000  45,000 

Auditors’ Remuneration:

Audit Fees  1,128,600  1,000,000 

Other Services  574,462 —

Out of Pocket Expenses  —  45,189    

    1,703,062  1,045,189 

Miscellaneous Expenses  1,254,420  349,504 

Provision made for dues from joint ventures  —  938,441 

 31,490,205  21,088,540 

Schedule ‘17’: Personnel Costs

Salaries, wages and bonus  39,349,150  22,015,316 

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds  865,832  154,677 

Staff Welfare Expenses  1,857,916  1,051,714 

Employees ‘ESOP’ compensation cost  11,353,039  — 

    53,425,937  23,221,707 

Schedule ‘18’: Finance Cost       
Interest Paid On:

Intercorporate Deposits from Gammon India Limited  9,141,163  — 

Others  23,934  — 

 9,165,097  — 

Other Finance Costs  574,634  278,243 

  9,739,731  278,243 
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SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2008

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

SCHEDULE 19: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.	 BACKGROUND

	 The Company is an infrastructure development company formed primarily to develop, invest in and manage various initiatives in 
the infrastructure sector. It is presently engaged in the development of various infrastructure projects in sectors like transportation, 
energy and urban infrastructure through several special purpose vehicles (“SPVs”). It is also engaged in carrying out operation 
and maintenance (“O&M”) activities for the transportation sector projects.

B.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 Basis of Preparation

	 The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the notified accounting standards by the 
Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The financial statements 
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on an accrual basis of accounting. The accounting policies discussed 
more fully below, are consistent with those used in the previous year.

	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates 
are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

	 (a)	 Revenue Recognition

		  Revenue on Operation and Maintenance contracts are recognized over the period of the contract as per the terms of the 
contract.

		  Revenue on Developer Fees is recognized on the accrual basis.

		  Interest Income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

	 	 Dividend is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet date. Dividend 
from subsidiaries is recognised even if same is declared after the balance sheet date but pertains to period on or before 
the date of balance sheet as per the requirement of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.

	 (b)	 Fixed Assets and depreciation

		  Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase 
price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition of its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to 
acquisition of fixed assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the 
extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

	 	 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on the Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner laid down in Schedule 
XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 or the rates based on the estimated useful lives of the fixed assets, whichever is higher. 
Depreciation on assets purchased/installed during the year/period is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of such 
purchase/installation.

	 	 Intangible assets are rights of Operations and Maintenance ('O&M') which results in an O&M income stream for the Company 
for a period of 14 years. The rights are therefore amortised over the period of 14 years. 

	 (c)	 Impairment

	 	 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on 
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital. 

		  After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

	 (d)	 Investments

	 	 Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. 
All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value 
determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution 
in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of long term investments.

	 (e)	 Inventories

	 	 Stores and materials are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price 
less estimated cost necessary to make the sale. The FIFO method of inventory valuation is used to determine the cost. 

	 (f)	 Provision for Taxation

	 	 Tax expense comprises of current, deferred and fringe benefit tax. Current income tax and fringe benefit tax is measured at 
the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act. 
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	 	 Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year/period timing differences between taxable income and accounting 
income for the year/period and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax 
rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only 
to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax 
losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can 
be realised against future taxable profits. 

		  At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred 
tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

	 (g)	 Operating Lease

	 	 Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term are 
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a 
straight line basis over the lease term.

	 (h)	 Earnings per share

	 	 Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year/period attributed to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year/period.

	 	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

	 (i)	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	 	 A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not 
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance 
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

		  Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in notes to accounts. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor 
recorded in financial statements. 

	 (j)	 Share Issue Expenses

		  Share Issue Expenses after 1st April, 2004 are charged off to the Security Premium Account, if available, or to the Profit and 
Loss Account.

	 (k)	 Employee Benefits 

	 	 Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and contributions are charged to the 
Profit and Loss Account for the year/period when the contributions are due.

	 	 Gratuity a defined benefit obligation is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each year/
period.

		  Leave encashment is recognised on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each year.
	 	 Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to profit and loss account and are not deferred.

	 (l)	 Employee Share – based payment plans ('ESOP')

	 	 The Company uses the intrinsic value method of accounting prescribed by the Guidance Note (‘GN’) on ‘Accounting for 
employee share-based payments’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) (‘the guidance note’) to 
account for its Employee Stock Option Scheme (the ‘ESOP’ Scheme) read with SEBI (Employees stock option scheme or 
Employees Stock Purchase Guidelines, 1999).

	 (m)	 Foreign currency translation

		  Initial recognition

		  Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amount the 
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

		  Conversion

	 	 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of 
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

		  Exchange differences

		  Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting company's monetary items at rates 
different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year/period, or reported in previous financial statements, 
are recognised as income or as expenses in the year/period in which they arise except those arising from investments in 
non-integral operations. Exchange differences arising in respect of fixed assets acquired from outside India on or before 
accounting periods commencing after December 7, 2006 are capitalized as a part of fixed asset.

SCHEDULE 19: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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	 (n)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 	 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less.

C.	 OTHER NOTES 

	 1.	 Investments

		  (a)	 The Company had during the period January 2005 to March 2006 entered into an agreement with Gammon  
India Limited (‘GIL’) by which it had acquired the beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights in respect of  
12,905,000 equity shares each (representing 44.5% of the beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights each) 
of Rajahmundry Expressway Limited (‘REL’) and Andhra Expressway Limited (‘AEL’) in consideration of payment  
of deposit of Rs. 163,618,800 and Rs. 164,761,200 respectively. Of these shares GIL had acquired the beneficial, 
controlling interest and voting rights in 1,812,500 shares each of AEL and REL from Punj Lloyd Limited ('PLL').  
By virtue of this agreement and the equity share holding in these companies, AEL and REL have become subsidiaries 
of the Company. 

	 	 	 The amount of Rs. 328,380,000 paid to GIL has been shown under Investments. In respect of these shares where the 
beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights have transferred to the Company, the shares continue to be held in the 
name of GIL and PLL as per the records of the respective companies.

	 	 (b)	 The Company had on August 31, 2007 entered into two separate agreements with GIL by which it acquired the 
beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights in respect of 9,596,923 equity shares of Gorakhpur Infrastructure 
Company Limited (‘GICL’) and 6,284,146 equity shares of Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited (‘KBICL’) (each 
representing 26.01% of the beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights in GICL and KBICL) in consideration of 
payment of deposit for acquisition of these shares of Rs. 158,810,690. By virtue of these agreements and the equity 
share holding in these companies, GICL and KBICL have become subsidiaries of the Company. In respect of these 
shares where the beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights have transferred to the Company, the shares continue 
to be the held in the name of GIL as per the records of the respective companies. 

	 	 (c)	 The Company had on August 31, 2007 entered into an agreement with GIL for acquisition of beneficial, controlling 
interest and voting rights in respect of equity shares of Indira Container Terminal Private Ltd (‘ICTPL’). Under this 
agreement when ICTPL shares are allotted to GIL, the Company would deposit to GIL, equivalent to GIL's subscription 
amount for the respective shares to acquire the above mentioned beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights. As a 
consequence of this agreement the Company’s beneficial, controlling interest and voting rights in ICTPL aggregate to 
50% of ICTPL.

	 	 (d)	 During the year, the Company had purchased and sold the following Investments in Mutual Fund.

  Opening Balance Purchase/

Dividend Reinvested

Dividend Sale Closing balance

No. of 

Units

Rs. No. of  

Units

Rs. Rs. No. of  

Units

Rs. No. of  

Units

Rs.

Canbank 

Mutual 

Fund

1,047,141 

(—)

10,514,348 

(—)

 6,987

(5,030,808) 

—

(50,514,348) 

 70,154 

(514,348) 

 1,054,128

 (3,983,667) 

 10,514,348

(40,000,000) 

—

(1,047,141) 

—

(10,514,348)

Canara 

Robeco 

Mutual 

Fund

—

(—)

—

(—)

997,924

(—)

10,000,000

(—)

20,158

(—)

 997,924

(—) 

 10,020,159 

(—)

—

(—)

—

(—)

	 	 	 (Previous year’s figures are in brackets)

	 2.	 Sundry Debtors

		  Sundry Debtors as at March 31, 2008, represents amounts due from the holding company, GIL.

	 3.	 Initial Public Offer

	 	 The Company has during the year made an Initial Public Offer of 16,550,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of 
Rs. 157 per share. The equity shares pursuant to the offer were allotted on March 27, 2008. An amount of Rs. 247,208,285 
and Rs. 138,968,512 is due from Retail and HNI category of Shareholders as at March 31, 2008 towards Equity Capital 
and Security Premium to whom equity shares were allotted in the Initial Public Offer. The total share issue expenses of  
Rs. 171,136,715 has been charged to the Security Premium account. All the funds collected are lying in escrow account 
as at March 31, 2008. 

SCHEDULE 19: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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	 4.	 Deferred Tax Liability

	 	 The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as given below:

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2008

As at 
 March 31, 2007

Deferred Tax Liability on account of: 

—	 Depreciation 25,348,664 15,319,929

Deferred Tax Asset on account of: 

—	 Gratuity/Leave Encashment 1,102,127 263,450

Net Difference (Deferred Tax Liability) 24,246,537 15,056,479

	 5.	 Earnings Per Share

	 	 Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted number of shares outstanding for basic and diluted earnings 
per share are as summarised below:

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2008

As at 
March 31, 2007

Net Profit After Prior Year Charge 69,750,889 68,882,292

Weighted average Number of Shares outstanding during the year - Basic  128,192,801 128,000,000

Weighted average Number of Shares outstanding during the year - Diluted 128,533,227 128,000,000

Earnings per Share-Basic (Rs.) 0.54 0.54

Earnings per Share-Diluted (Rs.) 0.54 0.54

		  Reconciliation of weighted number of outstanding during the year

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs. per share) 10 10

For Basic EPS: 

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 128,000,000 128,000,000

Add:   Issue of Equity Shares through Initial Public Offer [refer note C (3) of 
Schedule 19] 

14,074,508 —

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of year 142,074,508 128,000,000

Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of the year 128,192,801 128,000,000

For Dilutive EPS: 

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 128,000,000 128,000,000

Add:  Issue of Equity Shares through Initial Public Offer [refer note C (3) of 
Schedule 19] 

14,074,508 —

Add: Issue of Equity shares under Options as on March 31, 2008 [refer note 
C (10) of Schedule 19

1,565,000 —

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of year 143,639,508 —

Weighted average number of Dilutive Equity shares at the end of the year 128,533,227 —

Note: While computing weighted average number of shares outstanding, equity shares allotted on March 27, 2008 in the 
Initial Public Offer of the Company has been considered.

	 6.	 Expenses in Foreign Currency (on cash basis)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2008

Year ended
March 31, 2007

Traveling Expenses  921,895 235,301

Professional Fees (net of TDS & Service tax) 4,086,876 1,512,929

Total 5,008,771 1,748,230

	 	 The above does not include professional fees of Rs. 10,816,209 paid in relation to the Share Issue which has been charged 
to the Securities premium account. 
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	 7.	 Managerial Remuneration

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2008

Year ended 
March 31, 2007

Managerial Remuneration for Directors included in the Profit and Loss 
Account 

Salary and Incentives 8,218,173 3,845,659

Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund 119,280 6,240

Gratuity and Leave Encashment provision 68,831 56,878

Computation of remuneration payable to Managing Director as per 
Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956

Profit after taxation as per the Profit & Loss Account 70,271,615 94,826,234

Add: 

Provision for Current and Deferred Taxation 47,290,058 50,490,080

Directors Fees 150,000 45,000

Directors Remuneration 8,406,284 3,845,659

Depreciation and Amortisation 19,277,460 18,815,619

Add:  Assets written off 108,483 —

Less:  Depreciation u/s. 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 19,277,460 18,815,619

Net Profit u/s. 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 126,226,440 149,206,973

Maximum Managerial Remuneration payable @ 5% thereof 6,311,322 7,460,349

		  Managerial remuneration computation does not include ESOP compensation cost of Managing Director Rs. 4,845,000. 

	 	 The maximum amount payable in respect of the Managing Director is determined under Schedule XIII, Section III which 
provides for payment of remuneration to a managerial person in two Companies. Accordingly the maximum amount payable 
is as follows:

Year ended
March 31, 2008 

Year ended
March 31, 2007 

Maximum payable as above 6,311,322 7,477,354

Maximum payable from Rajahmundry Expressway Ltd. 9,420,621 9,270,756

Managerial Remuneration paid 8,406,284 4,121,731

	 8.	 Details of Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans
		  Disclosure of amounts outstanding at the period end as per Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement. These companies are also 

companies under the same management as per the Companies Act, 1956.

Particulars Balance as on 
March 31, 2008

Maximum Amount 
Outstanding during 

the year

Subsidiaries: 

Gammon Logistics Limited 337,080 337,080

Mumbai Nasik Expressway Limited 5,303 20,018,955

Haryana Biomass Power Limited 6,261,447 6,261,447

Gammon Projects Developers Limited 5,000 170,005,000

Associates and Joint Venture Companies: 

Punjab Biomass Power Limited 7,410 140,542

Gammon L & T Infra MRTS 945,441 945,441

Indira Container Terminal Private Limited 2,725,779 2,726,780

ATSL infrastructure Projects Limited 36,785 36,785

Modern Tollroads Limited 48,271 48,271

	 	 None of the loanees hold any shares in the Company.

	 9.	 Segment Reporting

		  The Company’s operations constitutes a single business and geographical segment of “Infrastructure Development” as per 
AS-17.

SCHEDULE 19: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
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	 10.	 Related Party Disclosure

(a) Relationships: 

Entity where control exists: 

Gammon India Limited - Holding Company

Subsidiaries: 

	 1.	 Andhra Expressway Limited

	 2.	 Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited

	 3.	 Gammon Projects Developers Limited

	 4.	 Gorakhpur Infrastructure Company Limited

	 5.	 Gammon Logistics Limited (previously known as Gammon Road Developers Limited)

	 6.	 Haryana Biomass Power Limited

	 7.	 Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited

	 8.	 Marine Project Services Limited

	 9.	 Mumbai Nasik Expressway Limited

	 10.	 Rajahmundry Expressway Limited

	 11.	 Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Limited

	 12.	 Tidong Hydro Power Limited

(b) Associates and Joint Ventures: 

1.	 Associated Transrail Structures Limited

2.	 ATSL Infrastructure Projects Limited

3.	 Eversun Sparkle Maritime Services Pvt. Limited

4.	 Gammon L & T Infra MRTS Limited

5.	 Indira Container Terminal Private Limited

6.	 Modern Toll Roads Limited

7.	 Punjab Biomass Power Limited

8.	 SEZ Adityapur Limited

9.	 Vizag Seaport Private Limited

(c) Key Management Personnel: 

1.	 Abhijit Rajan

2.	 Parvez Umrigar

(d) Details of related parties transactions for the period ended on March 31, 2008

			   —	 Please refer to the Annexure – 1

	 11.	 Details of Joint Ventures

		  (a)	 Details of Joint Ventures entered into by the Company

Sr. No. Name of the Joint Venture % of Interest
as at 

March 31, 2008

1. Vizag Seaport Private Ltd. 42.22%

2. Gammon L & T Infra MRTS Ltd. 50%

3. Punjab Biomass Power Ltd. 50%

4. Indira Container Terminal Private Ltd. (ICTPL) 50%

5. SEZ Adityapur Ltd. 38%

 			   All the above jointly controlled entities are incorporated in India
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		  (b)	 Details of share of Assets, Liabilities, Income, Expenditure and Capital Commitments in Joint Ventures

Amounts in brackets relate to March 31, 2007

Name of the 
Joint Venture

Share of 
Assets

Share of 
Liability

Share of 
Income

Share of 
Expenditure

Share of 
Capital 

Commitment

Contingent
Liabilities

Vizag Seaport 
Private Ltd.

 1,323,858,135 
(1,282,883,432)

1,083,867,763 
(971,066,736)

 237,692,589 
(128,656,064)

 309,437,178 
(173,946,047)

51,409,525
 (55,877,416)

32,713,390
 (28,301,163)

Gammon  
L & T Infra 
MRTS Ltd. 

511,261 
(521,551)

926,297
 (922,644)

– 
(N.A)

13,943 
(885,243)

– 
(–)

– 
(–)

Punjab 
Biomass 
Power Ltd.

67,291,090 
(23,705,650)

 5,802,300 
(7,968,860)

N.A.
(N.A)

N.A. 
(N.A)

246,293,634
 (265,052,374)

– 
(–)

SEZ Adityapur 
Ltd.

 325,135 
(242,719)

135,135
 (52,719)

N.A.
(N.A)

N.A.
(N.A)

– 
(–)

– 
(–)

Indira 
Container 
Terminal 
Private Limited

 170,956,594
(–)

7,147,594
 (–)

N.A.
(N.A)

N.A.
(N.A)

956,600,000
 (–)

– 
(–)

	 	 	 The above figures pertaining to the Joint Venture Companies are based on the audited accounts for the year ended 
March 31, 2008 except SEZ Adityapur Limited and Indira Container Terminal Private Limited which are based on the 
un-audited management accounts.

	 12.	 Amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

	 	 As per the information available with the Company, there are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the 
Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to whom the Company owes dues on account of principal amount 
together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made.

		  The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties 
have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied by the Auditors.

	 13.	 Quantitative information

		  Since the principal business of the Company is Infrastructure Development and carrying out operations and maintenance 
activities, quantitative details as required by Part II, para ii, 4(c), 4(d) of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956, are not 
required to be furnished.

	 14.	 Current Assets, Loans and Advances

	 	 In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a value on realization in the ordinary 
course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

	 15.	 Capital commitments

		  The total capital commitments of the Company as on March 31, 2008 are Rs. 2,736,900,000 (inclusive of share of capital 
commitment in joint ventures). Total capital commitment as on March 31, 2007, was Rs. 1,394,519,960. The capital 
commitments is in respect of projects where the concession agreements have been signed and does not include projects 
where the Company holds a Letter of Intent.

	 16.	 Pledge of Shares 

	 	 The Company has pledged the following shares in favour of the lenders to the projects as part of the terms of financing 
agreements of the respective companies:

Company Name No. of Equity shares pledged as at Rate (Rs.)

March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Andhra Expressway Limited 9,135,010 3,697,560 10/-

Rajahmundry Expressway Limited 9,135,010 3,697,560 10/-

Mumbai Nasik Expressway Limited 16,120,000 16,120,000 10/-

Gorakhpur Infrastructure Projects Limited 9,593,233 — 10/-

Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Limited 6,281,730 — 10/-

	 17.	 Employees Stock Options Scheme (‘ESOP’)

	 	 The Company has instituted an ESOP Scheme during the year which was approved by the shareholders vide their resolution 
dated May 4, 2007. The Board of Directors of the Company has granted 1,640,000 stock options to its employees pursuant 
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to the ESOP Scheme on July 1, 2007 and October 1, 2007. Each options entitles an employee to subscribe to 1 equity share 
of the Company at an exercise price of Rs. 80/- per share. 

	 	 The following options vest in a graded manner over a period of three to four years and are exercisable for a period of 2 
years from vesting as described below. 

		  Options granted on July 1, 2007

Vesting Date No. of Options Exercise Period Intrinsic Value (Rs.) Fair Value (Rs.)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

July 1, 2008 352,250 01.07.08 to 30.06.10 19.00 41.54

July 1, 2009 421,750 01.07.09 to 30.06.11 19.00 48.68

July 1, 2010 410,250 01.07.10 to 30.06.12 19.00 54.59

July 1, 2011 430,750 01.07.11 to 30.06.13 19.00 59.62

1,615,000

		  Options granted on October 1, 2007	

Vesting Date No. of Options Exercise Period Intrinsic Value (Rs.) Fair Value (Rs.)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

July 1, 2009 5,000 01.07.09 to 30.06.11 44.00 67.12

July 1, 2010 10,000 01.07.10 to 30.06.12 44.00 73.58

July 1, 2011 10,000 01.07.11 to 30.06.13 44.00 79.24

25,000

	 	 The Company was an unlisted company at the date of grant and the intrinsic value was determined on the basis of an 
independent valuation by following the price to Net Asset Value (NAV) method. The intrinsic value and the fair value as 
determined by the independent valuer are given in the above table.

	 	 Under this method, compensation expense equals the intrinsic value of the option which is recorded is amortised over the 
vesting period of the option. The intrinsic value is the excess of the value of the underlying stock as determined by the 
independent valuer over the exercise price at the measurement date, which typically is the grant date.

	 	 The fair value of 1,540,000 options granted on July 1, 2007 was determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model 
with the following assumptions:

		  (a)	 Risk free interest rate........................................................................................................... 	 7.49%

		  (b)	 Expected Dividend yield...................................................................................................... 	 —

		  (c)	 Expected Life of the option............................................................................................... 	 2 to 5 years

		  (d)	 Expected Volatility of Share price................................................................................... 	 51%

	 	 Similarly, the fair value of 25,000 options granted on October 1, 2007 was determined using the Black-Scholes Option 
Pricing Model with the following assumptions:

		  (a)	 Risk free interest rate........................................................................................................... 	 7.77% (3 years maturity)

	 	 	 	 	 7.71% (4 years maturity) 

	 	 	 	 	 7.81% (5 years maturity) 

		  (b)	 Expected Dividend yield...................................................................................................... 	 —

		  (c)	 Expected Life of the option............................................................................................... 	 2.75 to 4.75 years

		  (d)	 Expected Volatility of Share price................................................................................... 	 51%
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	 	 The Company’s stock option activity for the period ended March 31, 2008 is presented below:

Particulars Shares arising 
from options

Weighted average 
exercise price

Outstanding at the beginning of the period — —

Granted 1,640,000 80

Exercised — —

Forfeited 75,000 80

Outstanding at the end of the period 1,565,000 80

	 	 There were 75,000 options which were forfeited during the period. Further, none of the 1,565,000 options granted are 
exercisable as at March 31, 2008.

	 	 All the above options have an exercise price of Rs. 80/- per share and have a weighted average remaining contractual life 
of 3.55 years. 

	 	 Had compensation cost been determined in accordance with the fair value approach described in the Guidance Note, the 
Company’s net profit for the year ended March 31, 2008 as reported would have changed to amounts indicated below:

Particulars Rs.

Net Income as reported 69,750,889

Add: Stock based compensation expense included in the reported income 11,353,039

Less: Stock based compensation expenses determined using fair value of options 28,404,237

Net profit (adjusted) 52,699,691

Basic earnings per share as reported 0.54

Basic earnings per share (adjusted) 0.41

Diluted earnings per share as reported 0.54

Diluted earnings per share (adjusted) 0.41

Weighted average number of shares considered for diluted earnings per share (adjusted) 128,533,227

	 18.	 Employee benefits

	 	 From the April 1, 2007, the revised AS-15 (Employee Benefits) is applicable to the Company. The current year being the 
first year of adoption of AS-15 (Revised) by the Company, previous year information has not been furnished.

	 	 The ICAI has issued a limited revision to AS-15 (revised) which allows an entity to make disclosures required by paragraph 
120(n) of AS-15 (revised) prospectively from the transition date and also provides an option to charge the additional 
defined benefit liability arising upon the first application of AS-15 (revised) as an expense over a period upto 5 years, 
instead of adjusting the entire increase in liability to opening reserves. The limited revision has not yet been incorporated in  
AS-15 notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006. The Company expects that the limited revision will be 
incorporated in the notified standards shortly.

	 	 Accordingly, the Company has not provided the disclosures required by paragraph 120(n) in respect of its defined retirement 
benefits. The Company does not have any additional defined benefit liability arising upon the first application of AS-15 
(revised).

		  Gratuity

	 	 Gratuity is a defined benefit plan under which employees are entitled to receive gratuity calculated based on the number 
of years of their service and their last drawn salary at the time of retirement.

	 	 The following table summarises the components of net benefit expense recognized in the profit and loss account and 
amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2008

Net employee benefit expense (recognised in personnel costs)  

Current Service Cost 302,962

Interest Cost 39,657

Actuarial Loss 813,892 

Total 1,156,511
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		  The provision for gratuity at March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007 aggregates Rs. 1,160,189 and Rs. 447,909 respectively.

	 	 The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars Rs.

Defined benefit obligation, at March 31, 2007  447,909

Current service Cost 302,962

Interest Cost 39,657

Actuarial Loss 813,892 

Less:  Benefit Paid 444,231

Defined benefit obligation, at March 31, 2008 1,160,189

	 	 The Company‘s gratuity obligation is fully unfunded. Hence currently, the Company does not expect to contribute any 
amounts to its gratuity plan in the next annual period. 

	 	 The principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity obligations are as follows:

Discount rate 8%

Expected rate of return on plan assets Not applicable

Expected rate of salary increase 5%

Attrition rate 2%

Retirement age 60 years

	 	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

	 19.	 Remuneration to auditors

	 	 The remuneration to the auditors does not include Rs. 5,623,004 being the fees related to the work carried out for the 
Initial Public Offer that the Company has done which is debited as part of Share Issue expenses to the Security Premium 
Account.

	 20.	 Derivative Instruments and Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

	 	 There are no derivative instruments outstanding as at March 31, 2008. There is unhedged foreign currency exposure of US$ 
212,027 (Rs. 8,485,359) of liability outstanding as at March 31, 2008 which is included in Sundry Creditors for share issue 
expenses under the Schedule for Current Liabilities. 

	 21.	 Prior period comparatives

	 	 The previous period figures are however regrouped/reclassified to facilitate limited comparability.
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ANNEXURE 1: NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Related Party Transactions:  Amounts in brackets relate to March 31, 2007 

Transactions  Holding 
Company 

 Subsidiaries  Associates and 
Joint Ventures 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Total 

Operations & Maintenance Income:

— Gammon India Ltd.  143,020,096 — — —  143,020,096 

 (143,416,064) (—) (—) (—)  (143,416,064)

Purchase of Intangible Asset

— Gammon India Ltd. — — — — — 

 (250,000,000)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (250,000,000)

Developer’s Fees:

— Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd. —  49,690,280 — —  49,690,280 

 (—)  (49,743,408)  (—)  (—)  (49,743,408)

— Gorakhpur Infrastructure Company Ltd. —  35,599,857 — —  35,599,857 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Ltd. —  29,666,547 — —  29,666,547 

  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

Other Operating Income:

— Gammon India Ltd.  9,000,000 — — —  9,000,000 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

Insurance Claims received:

— Gammon India Ltd.  3,941,595 — — —  3,941,595 

 (2,987,142)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (2,987,142)

Rent Paid:      

— Gammon India Ltd.  1,200,000 — — —  1,200,000 

 (1,200,000)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (1,200,000)

Share Application Money Paid:

— Gammon Projects Developers Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Gammon Logistics Ltd. —  500,000 — —  500,000 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Gorakhpur Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  355,505,000 — —  355,505,000 

 (—)  (—)  (400,000)  (—)  (400,000)

— Indira Container Terminal Pvt. Ltd. — —  78,508,720 —  78,508,720 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Ltd. —  273,400,580 — —  273,400,580 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Modern Tollroads Ltd. — —  12,994,800 —  12,994,800 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd. — — — — — 

  (—)  (52,940,000)  (—)  (—)  (52,940,000)

— Punjab Biomass Power Ltd. — —  56,000,000 —  56,000,000 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— SEZ Adityapur Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (—)  (189,990)  (—)  (189,990)

— Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Ltd. —  11,861,000 — —  11,861,000 

  (—)  (10,578,000)  (—)  (—)  (10,578,000)
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Related Party Transactions:  Amounts in brackets relate to March 31, 2007 

Transactions  Holding 
Company 

 Subsidiaries  Associates and 
Joint Ventures 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Total 

Refund received against Share Application 
Money

Paid/Conversion into equity:

— Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Ltd. —  1,000,000 — —  1,000,000 

  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Gorakhpur Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  355,905,000 — —  355,905,000 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Company Ltd. —  273,400,580 — —  273,400,580 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd. — — — — — 

  (—)  (442,070,000)  (—)  (—)  (442,070,000)

— Punjab Biomass Power Ltd. — —  2,000,000 —  2,000,000 

  (—)  (—)  (20,000,000)  (—)  (20,000,000)

— Indira Container Terminal Pvt. Ltd. — —  78,508,720 —  78,508,720 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

Purchase of Investments:

— Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. — —  1,004,500 —  1,004,500 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Company Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Gammon India Ltd.  10,245,900 — — —  10,245,900 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

Advance received for purchase of equity shares:

— Modern Tollroads Ltd. — —  26,520,000 —  26,520,000 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

Managerial Remuneration:      

— Parvez Umrigar — — —  8,406,284  8,406,284 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (4,121,731)  (4,121,731)

Gross value of stock options issued to: 

— Parvez Umrigar — — —  11,400,000  11,400,000 

(—) (—) (—) (—) (—)

Amortization of options issued to:

— Parvez Umrigar — — —  4,845,000  4,845,000 

(—) (—) (—) (—) (—)

Finance provided (including Loans and Equity
contribution in cash or in kind):

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

— Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. — — — — — 

  (—)  (—)  (80,000,000)  (—)  (80,000,000)

— Gammon Projects Developers Ltd. —  70,000,000 — —  70,000,000 

  (—)  (100,000,000)  (—)  (—)  (100,000,000)

— Gorakhpur Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  247,861,330 — —  247,861,330 

  (—)  (—)  (194,950)  (—)  (—) 

— Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  173,395,590 — —  173,395,590 

  (—)  (—)  (244,940)  (—)  (—) 

— Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd. — — — — — 

  (—)  (8,500,000)  (—)  (—)  (8,500,000)

— Punjab Biomass Power Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (—)  (10,500,000)  (—)  (10,500,000)
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Related Party Transactions:  Amounts in brackets relate to March 31, 2007 

Transactions  Holding 
Company 

 Subsidiaries  Associates and 
Joint Ventures 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Total 

— Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Ltd. — — — — — 

  (—)  (10,573,000)  (—)  (—)  (10,573,000)

— Tidong Hydro Power Ltd. —  499,940 — —  499,940 
  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Haryana Biomass Power Ltd. —  499,940 — —  499,940 
  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Marine Projects Services Ltd. —  499,400 — —  499,400 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Gammon Logistics Ltd. —  499,400 — —  499,400 
  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Indira Container Terminal Ltd. — —  78,628,320 —  78,628,320 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Modern Toll Roads Ltd. — —  244,700 —  244,700 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— ATSL Infrastructure Projects Ltd. — —  244,500 —  244,500 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

Repayment in respect of finance provided 
including equity contribution:
— Gammon Projects Developers Ltd. —  170,000,000 — —  170,000,000 
  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. — —  70,000,000 —  70,000,000 

 (—)  (—)  (10,000,000)  (—)  (10,000,000)
Finance provided for expenses and on account
payments:

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

— Andhra Expressway Ltd. —  16,500 — —  16,500 
  (—)  (6,824,500)  (—)  (—)  (6,824,500)
— Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  451,496 — —  451,496 
  (—)  (5,500)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Gammon India Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Gammon Projects Developers Ltd. —  19,245 — —  19,245 
  (—)  (4,800)  (—)  (—)  (4,800)
— Gammon L & T Infra MRTS Ltd. — —  7,000 —  7,000 
  (—)  (—)  (338,740)  (—)  (338,740)
— Gorakhpur Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  9,405,013 — —  9,405,013 
  (—)  (3,198,767)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  4,938,274 — —  4,938,274 
  (—)  (2,690,772)  (—)  (—) — 
— Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd. —  20,022,589 — —  20,022,589 
  (—)  (28,145,777)  (—)  (—)  (28,145,777)
— Punjab Biomass Power Ltd. — —  9,579 —  9,579 
  (—)  (—)  (300,723)  (—)  (300,723)
— Rajahmundry Expressway Ltd. —  14,500 — —  14,500 
  (—)  (7,465,000)  (—)  (—)  (7,465,000)
— Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Ltd. —  47,500 — —  47,500 

 (—)  (398,404)  (—)  (—)  (398,404)
— Gammon Logistics Ltd. —  368,583 — —  368,583 
  (—)  (—) —  (—) — 
— Indira Container Terminal Ltd. — —  1,802,531 —  1,802,531 
  (—)  (—)  (923,248)  (—)  (923,248)
— ATSL Infrastructure Projects Ltd. — —  19,585 —  19,585 
  (—)  (—)  (17,200)  (—)  (17,200)
— Modern Toll Roads Ltd. — —  47,771 —  47,771 
  (—)  (—)  (500)  (—)  (500)
— Tidong Hydro Power Ltd. —  50,494 — —  50,494 
  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) — 
— Haryana Biomass Power Ltd. —  61,447 — —  61,447 
  (—)  (6,200,000) —  (—)  (6,200,000)
— Marine Projects Services Ltd. —  33,529 (—) —  33,529 
  (—)  (17,200) (—)  (—)  (17,200)
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Related Party Transactions:  Amounts in brackets relate to March 31, 2007 

Transactions  Holding 
Company 

 Subsidiaries  Associates and 
Joint Ventures 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Total 

Amount received towards the above finance:      
— Andhra Expressway Ltd. —  39,500 — —  39,500 
  (—)  (13,783,274)  (—)  (—)  (13,783,274)
— Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  446,856 — —  446,856 
  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Gammon India Ltd. — — — — — 

 (3,769,628)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (3,769,628)
— Gammon Projects Developers Ltd. —  48,845 — —  48,845 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Gorakhpur Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  12,603,780 — —  12,603,780 
  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Co. Ltd. —  7,629,046 — —  7,629,046 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd. —  20,414,113 — —  20,414,113 
  (—)  (40,552,323)  (—)  (—)  (40,552,323)
— Punjab Biomass Power Ltd. — —  142,711 —  142,711 

 (—)  (—)  (161,511)  (—)  (161,511)
— Rajahmundry Expressway Ltd. —  16,500 — —  16,500 
  (—)  (11,711,195)  (—)  (—)  (11,711,195)
— Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Ltd. —  1,021,954 — —  1,021,954 
  (—)  (10,578,000)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Tidong Hydro Power Ltd. —  50,494 — —  50,494 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Marine Projects Services Ltd. —  51,129 — —  51,129 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
— Gammon Logistics Ltd. —  31,503 — —  31,503 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
Interest income during the period:      
— Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. — —  473,699 —  473,699 
  (—)  (—)  (3,097,808)  (—)  (1,031,425)
— Gammon Projects Developers Ltd. —  1,641,152 — —  1,641,152 
  (—)  (1,084,932)  (—)  (—)  (1,084,932)
— Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd. — — — — — 
  (—)  (44,138)  (—)  (—)  (44,138)
Interest expenses during the period:
— Gammon India Ltd.  9,141,163 — — —  9,141,163 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

Finance received (including Loans and Equity
contribution in cash or in kind):
— Gammon India Ltd.  393,000,000 — — —  393,000,000 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
Finance received for expenses & on account
payments:
— Gammon India Ltd.  3,886,348 — — —  3,886,348 

 (11,266,554)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (11,266,554)
— Vizag Seaport Private Ltd. — —  640,646 —  640,646 

 (—)  (—)  (196,300)  (—)  (196,300)
Amount liquidated towards the above finance
received:
— Gammon India Ltd.  127,857,335 — — —  127,857,335 

 (30,216,751)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (30,216,751)
— Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Co. Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (5,500)  (—)  (—)  (5,500)
— Vizag Seaport Private Ltd. — —  1,000 —  1,000 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
Deposit towards purchase of 
Beneficial Interest of equity shares:
— Gammon India Ltd.  158,810,690 — — —  158,810,690 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
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Related Party Transactions:  Amounts in brackets relate to March 31, 2007 

Transactions  Holding 
Company 

 Subsidiaries  Associates and 
Joint Ventures 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Total 

Purchase of Beneficial interest of equity shares

— Mr. Abhijit Rajan — — — — — 
 (—)  (—)  (—)  (10)  (10)

— Mr. Parvez Umrigar — — — — — 
 (—)  (—)  (—)  (20)  (20)

Guarantees issued on our behalf:

— Gammon India Ltd.  16,550,000 — — —  16,550,000 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

Oustanding Balances Receivable:

— Andhra Expressway Ltd. — — — — — 
  (—)  (23,000)  (—)  (—)  (23,000)

— ATSL Infrastructure Projects Ltd. — —  36,785 —  36,785 
 (—)  (—)  (17,200)  (—)  (17,200)

— Gammon India Ltd.  234,966,959 — — —  234,966,959 

 (351,690,879)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (351,690,879)

— Gammon Projects Developers Ltd. —  2,115,740 — —  2,115,740 

  (—) (100,876,073)  (—)  (—)  (100,876,073)

— Gammon L & T Infra MRTS Ltd. — —  945,441 —  945,441 

  (—)  (—)  (938,441)  (—)  (938,441)

— Gorakhpur Infrastructure Co. Ltd. — — — — — 

  (—)  (3,198,767)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Kosi Bridge Infrastructure Co. Ltd. — — — — — 

  (—)  (2,690,772)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Marine Projects Services Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (17,200)  (—)  (—)  (17,200)

— Mumbai Nasik Expressway Ltd. —  5,303 — —  5,303 

  (—)  (396,827)  (—)  (—)  (396,827)

— Punjab Biomass Power Ltd. — —  7,410 —  7,410 

  (—)  (—)  (140,542)  (—)  (140,542)

— Rajahmundry Expressway Ltd. — — — — — 

  (—)  (2,000)  (—)  (—)  (2,000)

— SEZ Adityapur Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (959,454)  (—)  (—)  (959,454)

— Associated Transrail Structures Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (—)  (70,000,000)  (—)  (70,000,000)

— Haryana Biomass Power Ltd. —  6,261,447 — —  6,261,447 

 (—)  (6,200,000)  (—)  (—)  (6,200,000)

— Indira Container Terminal Ltd. — —  2,725,779 —  2,725,779 

 (—)  (—)  (923,248)  (—)  (923,248)

— Gammon Logistics Ltd. —  337,080 — —  337,080 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Modern Tollroads Ltd. — —  48,271 —  48,271 

 (—)  (—)  (500)  (—)  (500)

Oustanding Balances Payable:

— Gammon India Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 

— Cochin Bridge Infrastructure Co. Ltd. — — — — — 

 (—)  (4,640)  (—)  (—)  (4,640)

— Vizag Seaport Private Ltd. — —  835,946 —  835,946 

  (—)  (—)  (196,300)  (—)  (196,300)

— Sikkim Hydro Power Ventures Ltd. —  15,000 — —  15,000 

 (—)  (—)  (—)  (—)  (—) 
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

I. Registration Details

Registration No. 1 3 1 7 2 8 State Code 1 1

Balance Sheet Date 3 1 0 3 2 0 0 8

Date Month Year

II. Capital raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue Right Issue

 1 4 0 7 4 5 N I L

Bonus Issue Private Placement

N I L N I L

III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities Total Assets

   5 0 2 4 8 7 9    5 0 2 4 8 7 9

Source of Funds
Paid-up Capital Deferred Tax (Liability)

   1 4 2 0 7 4 5     2 4 2 4 6

Reserves & Surplus Unsecured Loans

3 2 7 5 5 3 4    2 9 3 0 0 0

Employee Stock Options 

  1 1 3 5 3

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets Investment

2 2 3 2 0 5    2 4 6 1 6 9 3

Net Current Assets Misc. Expenditure

    2 3 3 9 9 7 9 N I L

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Income Total Expenditure

2 7 5 1 6 8 1 5 7 0 0 6

+ – Profit/Loss before tax + – Profit/Loss after tax

+ 1 1 8 1 6 1 + 6 9 7 5 0

Earning Per Share in Rs. Dividend rate %

 0 . 5 4 N I L

V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company – Construction of:

Product Description B O T P R O J E C T S

Product Description

Product Description   

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gammon Infrastructure Projects Limited

Abhijit Rajan Chairman & Managing Director
Parvez Umrigar Managing Director
Himanshu Parikh

}C. C. Dayal
DirectorsNaresh Chandra

Place : Mumbai S. C. Tripathi
Date  :	 May 21, 2008 Sathis Chandran Company Secretary
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